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Summary Financial Information

Year to Year to
31 January 2003 31 January 2002
Turnover £30,682,000 £34,945,000
Pre-tax profit (before goodwill and exceptionals) £2,779,000 £6,508,000
Earnings per share {before goodwill and exceptionals) 7.0p 16.2p
Dividends per share — 12.5p
Number of shares in issue 28.5 million 28.5 million
Funds under management £4.1 billion £7.1 billion

Performance of FTSE 100

January 2000 to January 2003

6493
6433
6195
5462
5192
4238
3794
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Charles Nunneley Chairman

| was appointed chairman in February 2003, shortly after
the end of the group’s financial year. Consequently
| report to you on the performance of the business under
the previous board and on the approach that the current
board and management intend to adopt under my

chairmanship.

Chairman’s Statement
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Key features

New chairman: appointed February 2003,
joint managing directors appointed November
2002, new chief investment officer appointed
September 2002

Funds under management: at £4.1 billion,
down from £7.1 billion largely as a result of
market movements and the loss of The
Edinburgh Investment Trust mandate

Turnover: down 12% to £30.7 million from
£34.9 million

Pre-tax profit: (before goodwill and
exceptional items) £2.78 million
{2002 - £6.51 million})

Earnings per share: (before goodwill and
exceptional items) 7.0p (2002 ~16.2p}

Dividend per share: in light of the results for
the year, no final dividend will be paid

Average fee rate: improved over the year
from 0.46% of average funds under
management last year to 0.55% this year

New business: record gross sales achieved
by Edinburgh Portfolio, which has become
the leading retail fund of funds manager in
the UK

investment awards: 6 awards for
investment excellence across key areas of the

business
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Conditions have been and remain tough for
investment management houses in general.
However at Edinburgh Fund Managers we
now have a very exciting young team to drive
the group forward, a new, proven chief
investment officer, market leading products
with strong sales and, [ believe, the
opportunity to become much more focused
and build on the guality of our existing

business,

Business performance

Falling markets have impacted on the funds
under management and revenues of
Edinburgh Fund Managers as they have on
those of other asset management houses. The
UK market has now fallen by almost 50%
from the market high of 31 December 1999
when the FTSE 100 index closed at 6930. In
the year under review the UK and US markets,
which represent 8§3% of our funds under
management, fell 31% and 35% respectively.
The consequent decline in funds under
management was compounded by the
decision of The Edinburgh Investment Trust
to transfer its mandate of £1.1 billion away
from us in July 2002. Revenues for the year
fell 12% to £30.7 million and in the second
half the group made a loss of £0.3 million at
the pre-tax level (before goodwill and

exceptionals).



Extensive measures have been taken to
reduce the group’s cost base 1o a level
sustainable within the current economic
environment. In the middle of 2001,
following the purchase of Edinburgh
Portfolio, Edinburgh’s consolidated costs had
risen to in excess of £32 million. Over the
following 18 months, the closure of our
North American offices, staff reductions, and
the introduction of tighter, more focused,
budgeting controls reduced running costs by
approximately £11 million. Staff numbers
have fallen from 288 to 220. However we
have also had to absorb over £4 million extra
expense through increased pension
contributions, the cost of the decision to
cease soft commission and the cost of
servicing the significant intlux of new sales of
our murnal funds. For timing reasons, the
full benefits of these measures were not
realised in the year under review,

Expenses associated with the cost cutting
measures mentioned above form the major
part of the exceptional operating cost charged
to the profit and loss account of £2.5 million.

Awards achieved

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Further savings have been identified
within the group as part of our strategic review

and will be reported upon in due course.

—
Fund

Edinburgh Fund of Funds Portfolio

Award

Bloomberg Money Awards for Investment
Excellence 2002: Best Managed Fund

Edinburgh North American Fund

Standard & Poor’s Fund Awards 2003 (UK}
1st in UK Marketed Funds Equity North
American Sector over 10 years

Standard & Poor’s Fund Awards 2003
{Switzerland} 1st in North American Sector

over 10 years

Northern Investors Company

Money Observer Investment Awards 2003
Best Venture & Development Capiral Trust J

Edinburgh Income and Value Trust ple

Standard and Poot’s Fund Awards 2003 {(UK)
1st in UK Investment Trusts UK High Income
Sector over 3 years

Edinburgh Value Zeros ple

Bloomberg Money Awards for Investment
Excellence 2002: Highly commended,
Split Capital Investment Trust Section

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003
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New business

Gross and net retail sales, primarily through
IFAs, remained buoyant and the Edinburgh
Portfolio multl manager business
consolidated its leading position in the retail
market. Edinburgh Portfolio has been ranked
one of the top performing investment
operations in the UK by a number of
specialist publications.

Qur continuously expanding IFA
franchise has been a particular success story
and remains very strong. Gross mutual fund
sales reached a record level of £215 million,
in sharp and creditable contrast to the
depressed market conditions,

In our core investment trust business,
conditions were unsuited to the launch of
new investment trusts, although the
Edinburgh UK Tracker Trust, which regularly
trades at a premium, jssued some
£6.4 million of additional stock and our new
venture capital trust, Northern 3 VCT,
successfully completed a £14 miilion share
issue. On the institutional side we have made
considerable progress in developing our
product offering and we have built a very
strong and talented investment team in the
key UK equities market in particular.

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003

Future strategy

We are carrying out a thorough review of our
business strategy with the intention of
focusing our resources on our areas of
excellence and strength. These include, in
particular, the expanding retail IFA franchise,
the core investment trust business, our high
quality and high margin venture capital
business, Northern Venture Managers, and
specialist institutional mandates
concentrating particularly on UK equity and
venture capital portfolios. We are actively
seeking oppotrunities to dispose of parts of
the business which do not match our
strategy, and this will have the added benefit
of strengthening our balance sheet.

We strongly believe that there is a
substantial market for high value specialist
products in both retail and institutional
markets, and for the smalier specialist
investment houses with top quality teams
that best provide them. Qur past success in
nurturing our top performing and growing
tund of funds and venture capital businesses
has confirmed our view that such businesses
can flourish in even the most difficult
market conditions.

These businesses provide enhanced
margins and the group has moved its average
fee rate from 0.46% of average funds under
management in 2001/02 to 0.55% for
2002/03.

This twin pronged approach of specialist
mandates and high margin products,
together with rigorous control of costs,
should enable us to rebuild funds under
management and enhance revenues to create
a strong platform for the business and value
for shareholders. That will not happen
overnight, because investment markers
remain tough and uncertain, but excellent
progress has been made already.



Dividend

At the interim stage we said that we would
review our dividend policy at the year end. In
light of the results for the full year, and the
present very uncertain outlook for markets
and the world economy, the board does not
believe it prudent to pay a dividend for the
year to 31 January 2003,

Review and outlook for

business areas

1. Mutual funds

Our mutual funds, and in particular the
Edinburgh Portfolio fund of funds range of
products, have remained top sellers in a
competitive environment due to the excellent
performance in the fund range and the
group’s marketing team. During 2002/03
Edinburgh Portfolio saw net new business
inflows with funds under management
growing to £580 million. From the ISA
season through to the summer, gross sales
averaged over £1 million a day, and
Edinburgh Managed Growth Portfolio was
one of the top 20 selling funds among IFAs
in the third and fourth quarters of 2002.
Edinburgh Portfolic was rated the most
recommended fund of funds provider in
research conducted by Keydata and was also
ranked the top performing larger investment
group across all sectors over one year by
Professional Adviser, while the Edinburgh
Fund of Funds Portfolic was named ‘Best
Managed Fund® at the Bloomberg Money
Awards for Investment Excellence in
November 2002.

Qur range of directly managed unit
trusts has seen improving performance over
the last 12 monrhs, and Edinburgh North
American Fund was recently awarded first
place for 10 year performance by Standard
and Poor’s in both the UK and Switzerland,

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2, Investment trusts

The investment trust sector as a whole has
endured a difficult year, compounded by the
problems of split capital trusts. We have been
fortunate in having relatively limired
exposure to the split capital sector. Indeed
Edinburgh Income and Value Trust won
awards during the year for investment
performance. Investment trusts remain a very
important and valued part of our business
and continue to represent around one third
of our funds under management despite the
disappointing loss of the mandate for The
Edinburgh Investment Trust.

Cur investment trust marketing
programme, in particular the regular savings
and children’s products, continues to attract
good levels of public support for our client
trusts. The value and merits of these funds to
investors have in no way been diminished by
recent market conditions, and, as noted
above, the Edinburgh UK Tracker Trust has
been able to issue new stock. We are
confident that the sector will remain resilient
and hope to be able to expand our range of
funds when market conditions allow.

Analysis of funds under management at 31 January 2003

By geographic split By client

UK 69% M

Neorth America 14%
Europe 8% @

Pacific 7%

Japan 2%

Investment Trusts 35% M
Institutional 32%
OEICs/Unit Trusts 22% M
Private Clients 7% &
Venture Capital 4%
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3. Venture capital

The group’s specialist venture capital division,
Northern Venture Managers {NVM}), ended
the year with £138 million under management
and enjoyed a strong year and excellent deal
flow despire difficult conditions. The
division’s flagship trust, Northern Investors
Company, was named ‘Best Venture and
Development Capital Trust’ at the Money
Observer Investment Awards 2003, and has
posted top guartile performance over one,
three, five and ten years. In June 2002 NVM
completed a £14 million share issue for
Northern 3 VCT and a further tranche is
currently in progress. Investment activity was
buoyant with 16 new investments completed
and a total of £26 million committed during
the year. NVM has now raised more than
£70 million since the start of 2000. The
outlook for raising new venture capital funds
in 2003 is unquestionably tough but we have
one of the best brands in the marker and have
developed a good nerwork of supporting

advisers and distributors,

“We are confident that success will be achieved, even
though the outlook for the world and its stock markets
in the coming year is as uncertain and challenging as it
has been in recent years”
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4. Institutional business

Central to our strategy for building new sales
it the institutional market is the development
of focused specialist capability in the areas of
key strategic importance in this market,
where we have particular strengths. Work is
already well advanced in the UK equities
sector, building on the established expertise
of our UK instirutional desk, The group is
also researching the promotion of its strong
venture capital and multi manager capability
and track record in the institutional market.

Board appointments

Following the changes to the board in
November 2002, Anne Richards and Rod
MacRae were appointed as joint managing
directors. [ joined the board as non-executive
chairman in February this year. It is our
intention to make two further non-executive
appointments in the near future to bring the
board up to full strength.

Summary

The past year has undoubtedly been a very
difficult one for the group. At the same time,
core areas of the business have proved their
resilience despite those difficulties and in very
testing market congitions, The group and its
new leadership team have already made
substantial progress in rationalising and
refocusing the business. They have a very clear
mission and business plan. The group has the
talent it requires for success, and a
determination to deliver value to shareholders
and to clients. We are confident that success
will be achieved, even though the outlook for
the world and its stock markets in the coming
year is as uncertain and challenging as it has
been in recent years, | am grateful to our
valued clients and intermediaries for their
continuing support, and to our staff at all
levels for their dedication and hard work.

C K R Nunneley
Chairman
Edinburgh, 26 March 2003



Key performance
indicators

Funds under management, investment
performance, effective fee rates and costs are
the primary key performance indicators used
by the directors in managing the business.

Investment performance

The year to 31 January 2003 covers one of
the most turbulent periods in markets for a
generation. Investment performance against
this background has shown steady
improvement towards the end of the period
in relative terms, although in absolute terms
the majority of client portfolios showed
significant falls reflecting the steep decline in
market levels.

Performance in our retail funds has
generally been good with 72% of funds above
median over the year to 31 January 2003.
Longer term performance is also improving,
with 61% of funds ahead over 5 years.
Edinburgh Portfolio Limited, our fund of
funds business, has shown particularly strong
perfermance, which has been reflected in the
steady flow of new assets over the past year.

Performance in our Institutional and
Investment Trust businesses has been more
mixed. In general, our range of income related
and tracker products have performed well.
Our flagship Asia Pacific fund, Edinbargh
Dragon Trust, has shown strong performance
over both the short and long term and is ahead
of benchmark over one, three and five years.

We have continued to strengthen the
investment team through the course of the
year, with the recruitment of a new chief
investment officer, a senior Asia Pacific fund
manager and an additional rwo analysts to
the Fund of Funds team. In the coming
12 months we aim to continue to invest in
our investment staff through selective
recruitment in key areas.

We are pleased that the improved
performance in a number of key areas within
our Investment Trust and Retail Business has
been recognised through awards made by

external agencies including Bloomberg

Operating and
Financial Review

Money Awards and Standard & Poor’s Fund
Awards. In addition, a recent survey
conducted by Keydata highlighted Edinburgh
Portfolio as the top choice for IFAs for Fund
of Funds investment.

We believe these awards underline the
high quality of our staff and we look to build

further on these successes in the coming vear.

Financial summary

Revenues

Revenues are directly related to funds under
management and fee rates. Average funds
under management fell by 26% from

£7.6 billion to £5.6 billion and the effective
fee rate on average funds under management
during the year rose by 19% from 0.46% to
0.55%.

During the vear revenues fell by 12%
from £34.9 million to £30.7 million. An
additional £1.9 million in respect of a full
year of revenues from Edinburgh Portfolio,
which was acquired in July 2001, was offset
by a reduction of £2.2 million from the loss
of The Edinburgh Investment Trust. The
remainder of the fall reflects the effect of
market falls in the past two years and the

timing of new business inflows.

Operating costs

Operating costs {excluding goodwill and
exceptionals) at £27.6 million were
marginally lower than the previous year’s
£28.2 million. During the year we reduced
costs on an annualised basis by £5 million of
which £1.9 million was achieved in the year.
In the previous year we announced
annualised cost savings of over £5 million
and that last year’s costs reflected only part
of those savings. Costs this year have seen the
full benefit of those savings.

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003

The year to

31 January 2003
covers one of the
most turbulent
periods in markets
for a generation.



OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Against these savings there is the effect of
the full year’s costs arising from the
acquisition of Edinburgh Portfolio of
£2.5 million and che additional costs of the
increased new business, principally third party
management and administration costs,
additional costs following the decision to end
soft commission arrangements and increased
pension costs, The pension costs were
increased by over 60% from November 2002
following a pension scheme funding update at
31 July 2002. The results of the formal
actuarial valuation as at 31 January 2003 will
have an additional impact on costs going
forward but the details will not be known
until the results of the valuation have been
received.

Overall, costs [excluding goodwill and
exceptionals) as a percentage of average
funds under management increased to 0.49%
from 0.37% last year. The cost income ratio

has risen from 81% to 90%.

Exceptional costs

Certain costs were incurred during the year
which are deemed to be of an exceptional
nature and are not part of the normal
operational costs attributable to the business.
These related to redundancy payments to
staff and associated costs to effect the
reduction of the group’s cost base, additional
expenses relating to the integration of
Edinburgh Portfolio and the cost of advice in

Market returns year to 31 January 2003

connection with an offer for the group.

Goodwill amortisation

The goodwill charge arises from writing off
to the profit and loss account, over twenty
years, the excess of the cost of acquiring
companies over the tangible net assets of
those companies at the date of acquisition.
Last year’s goodwill charge included the
goodwill on the acquisition of Edinburgh
Portfolio from July 2001. This yeat’s figure
includes a full year’s charge for Edinburgh
Portfolio,

Operating profit

Operating profit {excluding goodwill and
exceptionals) fell by 54% over the past year
from £6.8 million to £3.1 million.

Investment gains and losses

During the year we realised a small gain on
disposal of investments compared with a loss
of £3.2 million last year. Another investment
was written down at a cost of £0.4 million
and our own shares held within our
employees® benefit trust were also written
down by £0.9 million, 1o market value at

31 January 2003, Their total cost of

£1.3 million is disclosed separately and has

been treated as exceptional.

Other income

Other income is principally interest received

Percentage movement

Region (Sterling adjusted)
UK -31.0%
UK Smaller Companies -31.4%
us -34.9%
Europe (ex UK) -30.4%
Japan -19.0%
Pacific (ex Japan) -23.3%
Emerging Markets -23.8%

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annusl Report and Accounts 2003




on cash deposits and 1s lower due to the fall

in interest rates.

Interest payable

The interest payable was higher than last
year. This was a direct result of a full year of
interest following the acquisition of
Edinburgh Portfolio.

Pre-tax profit

Pre-tax profit (before goodwill and

exceptionals} fell by 57% from £6.5 million

in the year to January 2002 to £2.8 million.
After goodwill and exceptionals there

was a pre-tax loss of £2.0 million compared

with last year's profit of £2.8 million.

Taxation

Tax relief is approximately 15% of pre-tax
losses after taking into account various items
for which tax relief is not available and credit
for £0.4 million of tax losses brought
forward. In 2001/02 the effective tax rate
was 42%.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share {(before goodwill and
exceptionals) fell by 57% from 16.2p to
7.0p. Earnings per share (after goodwill and
exceptionals) were down from 5.7p ro a loss
of 6.1p.

Cash and borrowings

Qur net borrowings as at 31 January 2002
were £3.4 million. During the year we
refinanced our bank overdraft with a six year
term loan of £13.5 million, and paid out
£3.0 million in respect of the balance of the
consideration due following the acquisition
of Edinburgh Portfolio. At 31 January 2003

our net cash was £10.6 million and the

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

amount outstanding on the term loan was
£13.3 million.

Risk management and financial
instruments

The key business risk which Edinburgh Fund
Managers faces is the level of stock markets
and their impact on our clients’ portfolios.
Fund management income is directly related
to the value of assets managed. Where client
portfolios are invested overseas there is also a
currency risk associated with the country in
which the assets are invested.

FRS 13, Derivatives and Other Financial
Instruments requires disclosure of financial
instruments which are held by or issued by
the group. The financial instruments which
require disclosure include fixed asset
investments, cash, bank overdraft, term loan
and the unsecured guaranteed loan notes.

Detailed information relating to the risk
profile of these financial instruments is
shown in note 26 to the financial statements.

As part of our OFEIC and unit trust
activity we hold temporary positions which
are at risk to market and currency
movements. In order to manage the risk
involved financial instruments may be used.
There were no open derivatives positions at

the year end.
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Board of Directors

C K R Nunneley

Non-Executive Chalrman

Charles Nunneley {67) is chairman of The
National Trust, Monks Investment Trust
and JP Morgan Fleming Income &
Capital Investment Trust. He was
previously deputy chairman of Flemings
and Clerical Medical and General Life
Assurance Society and chairman of

Save & Prosper and IMRO.

Date of appointment: 5 February 2003

R M MacRae Executive Director A H Richards Executive Director

Rod MacRae (39) is chief operating Anne Richards (38) is chief investment
officer and joint managing director. officer and joint managing director. She
He is a chartered accountant and was previously managing director and
joined Edinburgh Fund Managers in head of the Alpha team at Merrill Lynch
1991. Investment Management.

Date of appointment: 20 May 2002 Date of appointment: 2 September 2002
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Directors’ Report

The directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended

31 January 2003.

Business of the group

The principal activity of the group is investment
management, which includes the management of
investment trusts, unit trusts and OEICs, pension
tunds, private client funds, venture capital funds

and other discretionary portfolios.

Review of activities

A review of the business and likely furure
developments of the group are given in the
chairman’s statement and the operating and

financial review on pages 2 to 9,

Dividends

No interim dividend was paid {2002—4,0p) and no
final dividend is proposed (2002-8.5p) for the
year to 31 January 2003.

The group’s profit and loss account deficit for
the year of £1,731,000 will be transferred from

Treserves.

Directors

The board comprises a non-executive chairman
and two executive directors.

Mr A F MacDonald resigned from the board
on 14 March 2002, Mr A Watson resigned on
24 September 2002, Messrs ] R Wright, J W Blair,
A D M MacDonald and Sir Angus Grossart resigned
on 28 November 2002 and Mr I A Watt's
directorship with the company terminated on
28 November 2002.

Mr R M MacRae was appointed a director on
20 May 2002 and Ms A H Richards was
appointed on 2 September 2002. Mr R M MacRae
and Ms A H Richards were appointed joint
managing directors on 28 November 2002.

Mr C K R Nunneley was appointed
non-executive chairman on 5 February 2003,

In accordance with the articles of association,
Mr R M MacRae, Ms A H Richards and
Mr C K R Nunneley will seek appointment at the

annual general meeting.

Biographical details of directors standing for

appointment are given on page 10.

Directors’ interests in
the company

The names of the directors and their holdings in

the company’s shares are shown in the table below.

All interests are beneficially held. Other than those

disclosed below, no director had any interests in

the share capital of any group company.
Mr R M MacRae will receive an additional
1,246 shares in May 2003 and 2,943 in May 2005

arising from previous years’ bonus elections

through the Annual Incentive Scheme.
Ms A H Richards was awarded the 130,363

shares on a restricted basis. Details are given on

pages 23 and 24.

The company has not been notified of any

changes in the directors’ holdings between
31 January 2003 and 26 March 2003.
Details of directors’ share options are given on

pages 22 and 23 of the directors’ remuneration

report.
Ordinary Shares
at 31 January
2003 2002"
R M MacRae 8,273 3,367
A H Richards 130,363 —

* if later, date of appointment

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Directors’ fees

The maximum aggregate of the directors’ fees and
benefits in kind for their services was last set at
£130,000 ar the 2000 annual general meeting. A
resolution will be proposed at the annual general
meeting to increase the maximum aggregate fees
and benefits of the directors to £175,000 per
anpum which will provide the board flexibility in

appointing new non-executive directors,

Directors’ and officers’
insurance

The company maintains insurance cover in respect

of directors’ and officers’ liability.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the group has
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foresceable future. For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern

basis in preparing the accounts.

Substantial share interests

The substantial interests notified to the company
as at 26 March 2003 are shown in the table below.

Holder % of share

capital held
Hermes Investment Management {on behalf of clients) 29.2
Artemis Investment Management Ltd 10.4
Liberty Wanger Asset Management 5.2
Prudential 5.1
Legal & General Investment Management 3.8
NFU Mutual Insurance Society 34

12
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Payment policy
It is the group’s payment policy to ensure settlement
of all suppliers’ invoices in accordance with their
stated terms, In certain circumstances, settlement
terms are agreed prior to business taking place.

The amount owed to trade creditors at
31 January 2003 represented 14 days’ average
purchases.

Employment policies

The group is committed to the principle of equal
opportunity in employment. The group seeks to
ensure that all its employment policies are fair and
equitable and that entry into and progression
within the group are determined solefy by
application of job criteria, personal ability and
competence. Edinburgh Fund Managers will
recruit, train, promote and transfer employees on
the basis of the skills, relevant qualifications,
experience, aptitude and ability they can bring to
the job. The group will treat all employees with
dignity and respect, free from discrimination,
victimisation or harassment.

Should the group invest in new or refurbished
premises, access and facilities for those employees
with disabilities will continue to be taken into
account. Wherever reasonable and practicable, the
group will retain an existing employee who
becomes disabled during their period of
employment and provide fair opportunities for
their career advancement.

The group is committed to employee
participation and uses a variety of methods to
inform, consult and involve its employees.
Employees participate directly in the success of the
business through The Edinburgh Fund Managers
Share Incentive Plan. At 31 January 2003, 171
employees owned shares in the company through
this scheme.



Corporate Social
Responsibility

During the year the board established a Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee to provide the
group with a framework for ensuring thar all
aspects of social, environmental and erhical
matters are reviewed. Key business risks identified
in this area are reviewed by the compliance and
risk committee, the group’s senior risk oversight
body, as part of overall business risk assessment.

The board recognises its responsibility to the
community and during the year the group became
a member of Scottish Business in the Community
to enable employees to become more involved
with their local communities,

There is no formal environmental
management system in place as the board believes
that, at this stage, it would not be possible for the
group 1o justify the expense of implementation,
monitoring and reporting. Employees are
encouraged to minimise waste, particularly in the
office environment where technology is
increasingly used to reduce the amount of paper
consumed. Employees are encouraged to use
public transport both when travelling on business
and to and from work.

The group has adopted and maintains high
standards in its health and safety policy.

Charitable donations

During the year the group made charitable
donations of £14,000.

Auditors

Resolurions will be proposed at the annual general
meeting to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors
of the company and to authorise the directors to

fix their remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Purchase of own shares

At the annual general meeting to be held on

4 June 2003, special resolution 8 will be proposed
to renew the company’s authorisation to make
market purchases of its own shares. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be
purchased pursuant to the authority shall be 10%
of the issued share capiral of the company as at the
date of the passing of the resolution
{approximately 2.85 million shares). The
minimum price which may be paid for a share
shal} be 5p {exclusive of expenses). The maximum
price for a share (again exclusive of expenses) shall
be an amount equal to 105% of the average of the
middle market quotations for the company’s
shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of purchase. As at

26 March 2003, the company had 1,861,284
options to subscribe for shares outstanding
{representing 6.5% of the issued share capital of
the company as at 26 Matrch 2003). If the
outstanding amount of the existing buyback
authority conferred at the 2002 AGM is utilised in
full prior to the 2003 AGM and the buyback
authority is renewed at the 2003 AGM and is then
utilised in full, the options outstanding at

26 March 2003 would represent 8.1% of the
issued share capital of the company.

This authority, if conferred, will only be
exercised if to do se would result in an increase in
earnings per share and would be in the best
interests of shareholders generally.

No share buybacks were undertaken by the
company during the year to 31 January 2003.

By order of the board

Lynn Mathewson \,\L .
Secretary S

Edinburgh, 26 March 2003
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Directors’ Report on
Corporate Governance

The group is committed to high standards of
corporate governance, The board is accountable to
the company’s shareholders for good governance
and this statement describes how the principles
identified in the combined code appended to the
listing rules of the Financial Services Authority (the
‘code’} have been applied.

Directors

Until 28 November 2002, the board consisted of a
non-executive chairman, up to five other
non-executive directors and up to three executive
directors. All of the non-executive direcrors, with
the exception of Mr Watson, were considered by
the board, at that time, to be independent of
management and free of any relationship which
could materially incerfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement.

Following the resignation of all of the
non-executive directors and the termination of
Mr I A Wart’s directorship on 28 November 2002
there remained two executive directors.

A non-executive chairman was appointed on
5 February 2003 who is considered to be
independent of management. It is intended to
appoint two further independent
non-executive directors.

The board meets formally on a regular basis
and, during the year, it met formally on fourteen
occasions. The board has a schedule of matters
reserved to it for decision and the requirement for
board approval on these matters is communicated
widely throughout the senior management of the
group. This includes matters such as material
capital commitments, commencing or settling
major litigation, business acquisitions and
disposals and appointiments to subsidiary
company boards.

There is an agreed procedure for directors to

take independent professional advice, if necessary,
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at the company’s expense. This is in addition to the
access which every director has to the advice and
services of the company secretary. The secretary is
charged by the board with ensuring that board
procedures are followed and complied with.

Whenever a new director is appointed to the
board, he or she is provided with access to an
appropriate, external training course in respect of
the role and duties of public company directors
unless he or she has previous experience as a
director of a public company and considers that
further training is unnecessary.

To enable the board to function effectively
and allow directors to discharge their
responsibilities, full and timely access is given 1o
alk relevant information.

Until 28 November 2002 appointments to the
board were considered by the nominations
committee. Following the resignation of the members
of the nominations committee on 28 November
2002, the board has been responsible for the
appointment of directors. A nominations committee
will be re-established as soon as another independent
non-executive director has been appointed.

The nominations committee met on four
occasions during the year.

The names of the directors who served on the
remuneration, audit and nominations committee
for the period to 28 November 2002, together
with the principal terms of reference of the
committees are given on page 16.

Any director appointed during the year is
required, under the provisions of the company’s
arricles of association, to retire and seek election
by shareholders at the next annual general
meeting. The articles also require that one third
of the non-executive directors retire by rotation
each yvear and seek re-election at the annual
general meeting and that every director submits

himself for re-election at least every three years,



Directors’ remuneration

Full details of directors’ remuneration and a
statement of the group’s remuneration policy are
set out in the directors’ remuneration report on
pages 17 to 24,

Following the resignation of the members of
the remuneration committee on 28 November
2002, the responsibility for determining the
group’s remuneration policy and the remuneration
packages of the execurives has reverted to the
board. No changes have been made in that period
either to the group’s remuneration policy or the
executives’ remuneration packages.

A remuneration committee will be
re-established as soon as another independent
non-executive director has been appointed,

Relations with shareholders

The company places a great deal of importance on
communication with its shareholders. There is
regular dialogue with individual institutional
shareholders as well as general presentations after
the interim and annual results. All shareholders
have the opportunity to put questions to the
company’s annual general meeting.

At its annual general meeting, the company
complies with the provision of the code relating to
the disclosure of proxy votes and the separation of
resolutions. The timing of the despatch of the
tormal notice of the annual general meeting
complies with the code.

Accountability and audit

The respective responsibilities of the directors and
the aunditors in connection with the financial
statements appear on pages 25 and 26, The
statement of the directors on the going concern
basis appears on page 12.

The beard has overall responsibility for
ensuring that there is in place a system of internal
control for the group. Such a system is designed to
provide reassurance with regard to the
safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the reliability of financial
information used within the business or for
publication. The system also extends to
operational and corporate controls and risk
management. Such a system is designed to manage

rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve

DIRECTORS’ REPORT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against
marerial misstatement or loss.

A management committee, the compliance
and risk commirtee, has the responsibility for
identifying, evaluating and managing the
company’s significant risks, Until 28 November
2002, the audit committee received reports from
the compliance and risk committee setting out key
business risks and considered possible financial,
operatienal and compliance controls, The audit
committee also received regular reports from the
compliance and risk function, external auditors
and management which included
recommendations for improvement. The audit
committee’s role in this area was confined to a
high level review of the arrangements for internal
control. Following the resignation of the members
of the audit committee on 28 November 2002, the
compliance and risk committee has assumed the
role of audit committee. An audit committee will
be re-established as soon as another independent
non-executive director is appointed.

The board’s agenda includes a regular item for
consideration of risk and control. At its March
2003 meeting, the board carried out the annual
assessment of the effectiveness of the group’s
system of internal control for the year to
31 January 2003.

The audit committee met twice during the
year and the compliance and risk commiteee, in its
role as audit committee, met once and considered
reports from the external auditors, as well as from
management. These meetings were attended by
senior members of staff and the company’s
external auditors.

During the period to 28 November 2002 the
audit committee kept the scope and effectiveness
of the external audit under review. The
independence and objectivity of the external
auditors was also considered on a regular basis,
with particular regard to the level of non-audit
fees. Since 28 November 2002, until the
appointment of the new chairman, the compliance
and risk committee has assumed this responsibility.
The split between audit and non-audit fees for the
year under review appears on page 34. This shows
statutory audit work and other work which is
required to be done by the auditors (covering FSA

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Repart and Accounts 2003
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DIRECTORS® REPORT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

audit reviews, interim audit reviews and auditing The company does not currently have a
the FRAG 21 report) and additional work which nominations committee (A5.1),
included costs of an information technology The company does not currently have a
security review and tax advice. The level of these remuneration committee (B1.1-3, B1.9-10, B2.1-6,
additional fees is nor considered ro affect C2.3).
independence or objectivity. The company does not currently have an audit
committee (C2.3, 13.1-2).

Compliance statement The company is actively seeking to appoint
The board confirms that, following the two further independent non-executive directors.
resignation of all of the non-executive directors The nominations, remuneration and audit
on 28 November 2002, the company has not committees will be re-established as soon as
complied with the following provisions set outin  another independent non-executive director is
Section 1 of the Combined Code. All other appointed.
provisions have been complied with throughout
the year, Board committees

References are to paragraphs of the Combined ~ Membership of the board committees up to
Code. 28 November 2002 and a summary of their terms

From 28 November 2G02 unti the appointment  of reference are ser out below:
of the chairman on 5 February 2003, there were no
non-executive directors {A2.1, A3.1-2).

Audit Nominations Remuneration

committee committee committee

To assist the board in discharging To consider and recommend To monitor, review and

its duties and responsibilities for to the board the appointment  recommend the group’s
financial reporting, corporate of directors. remuneration policy (as set out
governance, internal control and on page 17). To determine, on
appointment and remuneration behalf of the board, the

of the independent auditors. remuneration packages of the

executives of the group.

Sir Angus Grossart {Chairman)” J R Wright {Chairman) Sir Angus Grossart (Chairman)’
J W Blair’ 1 W Blair™ A D M MacDonald”
A D M MacDonald” Sir Angus Grossart’ A Watson?
J R Wright' A Warsont J R Wright
A F MacDonald! A F MacDonald!

+ Resigned 14 March 2002
* Resigned 24 September 2002
* Resigned 28 November 2002

By order of the board
Lynn Mathewson \B\AM \V\Q\M&,aw—-..

Secretary
Edinburgh, 26 March 2003
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration committee

Until 28 November 2002, the group’s remuneration
policy and the specific remuneration packages of
the executive directors, including those of
subsidiary undertakings (the “execucives”), were
determined by the remuneration committee (the
“committee™) on behalf of the board.

Membership of the committee during the
period to 28 November 2002 is given on page 16.
The members of the committee, with the exception
of Mr A Watson, were considered by the board at
that time to be independent.

Following the resignation of the members of
the committee on 28 November 2002, the
responsibility for determining the group’s
remuneration policy and the remuneration
packages of the executives has reverted to the
board. No changes have been made in that period
either to the group’s remuneration policy or to the
executives’ remuneration packages.

A new independent non-executive chairman,
Mr C K R Nunneley, was appointed in February
2003. The company is actively seeking to appoint
two further new independent non-executive
directors with the requisite knowledge, skill and
experience. The committee will be re-established as
soon as another independent nén-executive
director is appointed.

The re~constituted committee will be chaired by
Mr C K R Nunneley and will have detailed written
terms of reference. Broadly, it will be established to:

(1) recommend to the board the group’s
palicy on executives’ remunerationn;

(ii) ensure that executives’ remuneration
packages are sufficiently attractive, but do
not go further than is necessary, to
attract, retain and motivate high-calibre
individuals;

{iii) ensure that a significant proportion of
executives’ remuneration is linked to the
group’s corporate, and their individual,
performance;

(ivi ensure that the remuneration policy of the
group is determined by a committee
consisting of only independent
non-executive directors who have no
personal interest in the level of

remuneration of the executives and who

will have due regard to creating
shareholder value; and
(v} ensure that full consideration has been
given to Section 1B of the Combined Code.
In ¢he period from 1 February 2002 to
28 November 2002 the Committee received advice
from Shepherd+Wedderburn and Investec in
relation to the Restricted Shares awarded to
Ms A H Richards, details of which are given on
pages 23 and 24.

Policy on executives’ remuneration

The board is committed to pursning a strategy for
continued improvement in the financial
performance of the group and recognises the
importance of the group’s remuneration policy in
achieving this objective, The group’s policy for the
forthcoming financial year is to provide a
remuneration package which is competitive in the
asset management sector in order to attract, retain
and motivate high calibre people. That package
will seek to align the interests of executives more
closely with those of the company’s shareholders
by incentive payments which recognise shareholder
value and encourage employees to acquire and
retain an equity stake in the company.

Following the appeointment of Mr CK R
Nunneley as the independent non-executive
chairman of the company in February 2003, the
remuneration policy of the group is under review.
That review will be taken forward by the committee
as soon as it is re-established and will include all
elements of executives’ remuneration packages. The
committee will take such independent professional
advice as it considers necessary or desirable to
ensure that the current remuneration practices of
comparable companies are taken into account,

The rermuneration and terms of appointment
of any new non-executive directors will be
determined by the board within the limits set by

the company’s articles of association.

Policies on individual elements of
remuneration

Salaries and benefits

The salaries of executives are determined after a
review of their performance and with reference to
external market research. It is the aim of the board

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003
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to reward executives competitively and on the
broad principle that salaries (together with other
benefits) should be based around the median
remuneration paid to those with similar
responsibilities in fund management companies in
Scotland. Due to the current operating
environment, however, salaries have been frozen for
the time being. A company car or cash equivalent
and private medical benefits are also provided.
Executives are members either of the
Edinburgh Fund Managers Group ple Retirement
and Death Benefits Plan (“Group Pension Plan”)
or of defined contributions schemes. The Group
Pension Plan is non contriburory and the normal
retirement age is sixty, which enables members to
achieve up to the maximum pension benefit of two
thirds of final pensionable salary at normal
retirement age after forty years’ service, For death
before retizement, a capital sum of four times

pensionable salary is payable.

Share Incentive Plan
The Share Incentive Plan (*SIP”} is intended to
encourage share ownership by employees. It is
designed to be available to all employees, subject
to a minimum period of service. The company
presently offers Partnership Shares and Matching
Shares (on a one for one ratio) under the SIP,

In addition, employees are awarded free
shares if performance targets set by the company
are achieved. No free shares will be awarded in

respect of the year to 31 January 2003.

Savings-related share options

The company has previously granted options
under the 1995 Savings-Related Share Option
Scheme, a scheme where participation is available
to all employees, subject to a minimum period of

service.

Executive share options
In the period to 28 November 2002, 237,784
discretionary executive options were granted
under the 1998 Unapproved Executive Share
Option Scheme (the “Executive Scheme™) on the
recommendation of the committee. There have
been no grants of options since that date.
Options granted under the Executive Scheme
have a seven year life and cannot be granted at a

discount.
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Ordinary options granted under the Executive
Scheme are exercisable prior to the fourth, fifth and
sixth anniversaries of the date of grant in relation to
25%, 50% and 75% respectively of the number
originally granted, but only if the growth in earnings
per share of the group exceeds the percentage
increase in the retail price index over
three consecutive years by at least 3% per annum
compounded annually. Ordinary options granted to
an executive, in aggregate with the market value at
the date of grant of ail other executive options
granted to that executive in the last ten years, may not
exceed four times the executive’s relevant earnings.

Super options may be granted in excess of the
limit referred to above, up to a maximum of eight
times the executive’s relevant earnings. Only one half
of the super options can be exercised between the
third and sixth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise of super options is subject to the growth in
the group’s earnings per share over five consecutive
years being at least equivalent to that of the top
quartile of companies within the FISE 100 index.

In certain circumstances options may be
exercised early and without the performance
criteria being achieved. These include takeover,
death, retirement, redundancy and at the
discretion of the board.

It is recognised that the Executive Scheme does
not now reflect institutional guidelines or market
practice in a number of important aspects. The
closure of the Executive Scheme and the
introduction of both a new executive scheme and a
long term incentive plan which reflect institutional
guidelines and current best practice is under
consideration. As part of that process the board (or
the committee once it is re-established) will review
the performance conditions to be attached to
options or long term awards granted by the
company in the future, The company has engaged
KPMG and Shepherd+Wedderburn to assist in that
review to ensure, in particular, that any options or
long term awards granted are subject to challenging
performance conditions which, in so far as possible,
are a genuine reflection of the financial performance
of the group in the relevant performance period.
Shareholders will be consulted in due course in
relation to these proposals.

Any new schemes will require to be approved
by shareholders. If the introduction of new



schemes proceeds, the relevant circular to

shareholders will include (amongst other things):
(i} a detailed summary of the performance

conditions to which an executive’s

entitlement will be subject;

{ii) an explanation as to why those

performance conditions have been

chosen; and

(iii) derails of the methods to be used in

assessing whether any such performance

conditions are met.

The company’s policy on the grant of options or

awards under any new schemes approved by

shareholders will be set out in that circular.

Bonuses

Deferred bonuses were awarded to certain
executives for the two years ending 31 January
2003 and 2004. These bonuses were put in place
to retain certain executives during a period of
corporate uncertainty at the start of 2002,

The payment of all deferred bonuses is
conditional upon the executive being employed by a
group company, and not under notice of
termination of contract where such notice has been
given by the executive, throughout the relevant
financial year and at the payment date.

Mr R M MacRae has waived his deferred bonus of
£36,000 in respect of the year to 31 Januvary 2003,
He is entitled to a deferred bonus of £48,000 for
the year to 31 January 2004, payable in May 2004,

As part of her remuneration package,

Ms A H Richards is entitled to a bonus of
£200,000 in respect of the year to 31 January

Directors’ service contracts

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

2003, payable in May 2003, and £120,000 in
respect of the year to 31 January 2004, payable in
May 2G04, The bonuses are conditional on

Ms A H Richards being employed by a group
company, and not having given notice to terminate
her employment on the payment date.

Executives within the business development and
investment divisions have objectively measurable
performance targets and can earn a pre determined
minimum bonus if the performance targets are met.
There is also a discretionary bonus scheme for
executives outwith these divisions, All bonuses are

subject to an upper limit of two times salary.

Annual Incentive Scheme

Executives may elect through the company’s Annual
Incentive Scheme to take all or part of their bonus,
after deduction of rax, in shares of the company, in
which case the company will buy the shares in the
market and deposit them with an employees’
benefit trust. If the shares are held for a minimum
of three years in the employees’ benefir trust, the
executive will receive an enhancement of up to 60%
of the number of shares held {(“Matching Shares™).

Service cantracts

The company’s policy regarding service contracts
is that all executives should be offered rolling
contracts of no longer than twelve months.
Where commercially necessary to recruit a high-
calibre individual or to protect the company’s
interests, a service contract may be for a longer
initial period reverting to a twelve month notice

period thereafter,

Date of Unexpired Notice Provision for

Pirector contract term period compensation

Mr R M MacRae

{appointed 20 May 2002) 29.8.97 12 months Rolling 12 months Salary & benefits

[_Ms A H Richards

(appointed 2 September 2002}  2.9.02 19 months Initially two years Salary, benefits,
reducing to rolling bonus payable
12 months after the 2003 and 2004
first year of employment

Mr T A Watt

{directorship terminated 1.2.97  Nil Rolling 12 months Salary & benefits

28 November 2002} See page 20
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The current executives have service contracts
with the company’s subsidiary, Edinburgh Fund
Managers plc. With the exception of Ms A H
Richards, the chief investment officer (*CIO™},
service contracts are rolling contracts of no more
than twelve months.

There are no service contracts for non-executive
directors. Letters of appointment confirm the terms
and conditions of their appointment.

Details of the contracts for directors who
served during the year are shown in the table on
page 19,

In its offer of employment to Ms A H
Richards, the company also agreed to grant her (i)
super options over the company’s ordinary shares
and (ii) awards over ordinary shares of the
company on a restricted basis (“Restricted Shares™)
in compensation for the lock-in arrangements of
which she had the benefit under her previous
employment. Details of the Restricted Shares are
given on pages 23 and 24.

Ms A H Richards’ remuneration package
reflects the pressing business need that the group
had for a high calibre CIO and the requirement to
compensate her for the loss of benefits on leaving
her previous employment,

Mr I A Watt’s employment with Edinburgh
Fund Managers plc was terminated with effect from
28 November 2002. His directorship of the

company terminated on the same date.

Total cumulative sharehoider return
for the five year period to 31 January 2003

200

150
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oL

20

—FTSE All-
Share
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Rebased to 100 on 1 February 1998
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A compromise agreement was entered into
with Mr I A Watt under the terms of which he is
entitled to receive a payment of £460,000.

Total shareholder return

The graph below charts the total cumulative
shareholder return for a holding of the company’s
shares against the FTSE All-Share index for the
five year period to 31 January 2003. The company
considers that this is the most appropriate index
against which to measure company performance.

The auditors are required to report on the
information contained in the following section of
the report ending on page 24.

Emoluments and compensation
The emoluments in respect of qualifying services
and compensation of each person who served as g
director during the year were as shown in the table
opposite.

Benefits receivable consist of a car allowance
and private healthcare.

Mr T A Watt had been entitled to receive
12 months’ notice of termination of employment
in terms of his service contract. The payment made
to him of £460,000 compensates him for the loss
of salary, bonus and other benefits which would
otherwise have been payable during his notice
period. He also retained the right to exercise his
255,000 executive share options within one year.
Details of the executive share options are given on
page 22. In addition he was entitled to retain the
relevant portion of his Matching Shares through
the Annual Incentive Scheme which amounted to
4,497 shares.

Directors’ pensions

Details of the entitlements of those who served as

directors during the year are shown on page 21.
Mr R M MacRae was appointed a director on

20 May 2002, The increase in transfer value in the

table opposite is from 1 February 2002 to

31 January 2003.
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Directors’ emoluments and compensation

Compensation
for loss
Basic salary Bonus Fees Benefits of office 2003 2002
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive
I A Watt
{directorship terminaced
28 November 2002} 202 —_ — 10 460 672 357
R M MacRae*
(appointed 20 May 2002) 84 — — 9 — 93 —
A H Richards*®
(appointed 2 September 2002) 62 200 — 5 — 267 —
Non-executive
J W Blair
{resigned 28 November 2002) — — 12 — —_ 12 15
Sir Angus Grossart
{resigned 28 November 2002) — — 14 — — 14 17
A D M MacDonald
(resigned 28 November 2002) — — 12 — — 12 15
A F MacDonald
(resigned 14 March 2002) — — 2 —_ — 2 15
A Watson
(resigned 24 September 2002) — —_ 10 — — 10 11
J R Wright
(resigned 28 November 2002) —_ — 33 — — 33 28
Total 348 200 83 24 460 1,115 458
* Salary from date of appointment
Directors’ pensions
n 2 (3) @) (5) (6) #
Gross Increase in Total Value of net Total change  Value of Value of
increase in accrued accrued increase in transfer accrued accrued
accrued  pensionnet  pension in accrual  value during pension at  pension at
pension of inflation 31.1.03 over period period 31.1.03 31.1.02
£000 £00¢ £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
R M MacRae 2 2 22 11 23 148 125
A H Richards 1 1 1 4 4 4 —
T A Wat 3 1 154 15 558 2,738 2,180

Notes:

{a) Pension accruals shown are the amounts which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to 31 January 2003 for
Mr R M MacRae and Ms A H Richards and ro 28 November 2002 for Mr 1 A Warr.

{b) The values of the accrued pensions have been calculated in accordance with Acruarial Guidance Note GN11.

{c} The value of nec increase (4] represents the incremental value to the director of their service during the year, calcutated on the
assumption that service terminated at 31 January 2003 for Mr R M MacRae and Ms A H Richards and at 28 November 2002 for
Mr 1 A Watt. It is based on the accrued pension increase (2).

{d} The change in value (5) includes the effect of fluctuations due to factors beyond the control of the company and direcrors, such as
stock market movements.

(e) The values of the accrued pensions do not represent sums payable to the individuals.
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Directors’ share options
Details of the share options of those directors who
served during the year are as shown in the tables
below.

No director exercised options during the year.

The EFM Group Executive Share Option
Scheme (“the EFM Scheme™) was closed for future
grants of options during 1995, Exercise of options
under this scheme is not subject to any performance

criteria and the options have a ten year life.

Executive share options

31.1.02 Exercise Date from
{or later date of  Options price which Expiry
appointment)  granted 31.1,03 in) exercisable date
) A Watt
19935 Scheme 10,000 — 10,000 726.0 29.11.02  28.11.03
ﬂ& Scheme 25,000 — 25,000 592.5 29.11.02 28.11.03
100,000 — 100,000 532.5 29.11.02  28.11.03
100,000 — 100,000 407.5 29.11.02  28.11.03
20,000 — 20,600 661.0 29.11.02  28.11.03
Total 255,000 — 255,000
R M MacRae
EFM Scheme 10,000 — 10,000 604.0 11.7.98 27.05.04
1995 Scheme 5,000 — 5,000 726.0 6.10.98  05.10.05
7,000 — 7,000 592.5 1.10.99  30.09.06
1998 Scheme 28,000 — 28,000 532.5 25.3.01  25.03.05
50,000 — 50,000 407.5 4.5.04 04.05.06
20,000 - 20,000 661.0 31.3.05  31.03.07
Total 120,000 — 120,000
A H Richards
1998 Scheme — 197,784 197,784 123.5 7.10.07  06.10.09
Savings-related share options
31.1.02
(o later Exercise  Date from
date of Options Qptions price which Expiry
appointment)  granted lapsed 31.1.03 () exercisable date
R M MacRae 2,136 -— — 2,136 316.0 1.6.04 1.12.04
I A Wait 5,340 — 5,340 — 316.0 — —
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The Edmburgh Group 1995 Executive Share
Option Scheme (“the 1995 Scheme™) was closed
for future grants of options during 1998. Under
this scheme, options are exercisable only if, over
any three consecutive financial vears of the
comparny commercing on the first day of any
financial year of the company the end of which
falls afrer the date of grant of the options, the
percentage increase in the earnings per share
exceeds the percentage increase in the retail price
index by at feast 2% over the same period.
Options held under the 1995 Scheme have a ten
year life,

The options held by directors under the
Edinburgh Fund Managers Group 1998
Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme
(“1998 Scheme™) are all super options with the
exception of Mr R M MacRae’s 28,000 options
with an exercise price of 532.5p, which are
ordinary options. Details of the performance
criteria for ordinary and super options are given
under executive share options on page 18.

As part of his compensation for loss of office,
Mt I A Watt has retained the right to exercise his
executive options within one year of the
termination of his employment and, in accordance
with the rules of the schemes, the performance
criteria are waived.

The highest and lowest prices of the company’s
shares during the year were 575p and 105p
respecrively, The price at the year end was 130p.

Restricted Share Awards
granted to Ms A H Richards
Two awards of Restricted Shares were made to
Ms A H Richards over an aggregate of 130,363
ordinary shares on 7 Ocrober 2002. The principal
terms applying to the awards of Restricted Shares
are described below. Ms A H Richards is the only
executive who has been awarded Restricted Shares
by the company.

As noted on page 20 the appointment of
Ms A H Richards was in response to a pressing
business need to recruit a high calibre CIO. In

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION REPORT

order to recruit Ms A H Richards it was necessary

to award her Restricted Shares on the terms

described below which are designed to reflect, and
to compensate her for the loss of, certain “lock in”
arrangements granted by her previous employer.

In awarding Ms A H Richards’ Restricted

Shares, the board relied on the exemption from the

need to obtain shareholder approval for any such

arrangement contained in paragraph 13.13A(b) of
the Listing Rules, The board considered the
pressing need of the company to appoint a CIO
and the need to compensate Ms A H Richards for
her “lock in” arrangements to be “unusual
circumstances” in terms of that paragraph.

The principal terms applying to the Restricted

Shares are as follows:

1. the shares awarded are held by the trustees of the
Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Employees’
Benefit Trust on behalf of Ms A H Richards.

2. immediately upon grant of the awards
Ms A H Richards acquired the right to obtain
the benefit of the shares awarded, including the
right to dividends and the right ro direct the
trustees as to how to vote those shares.

3. of the total Restricted Shares awarded, 57,489
{the “First Tranche”) will be held by the
trustees until 31 January 2006 and 72,874 (the
“Second Tranche™) will be held until
31 January 2007, after which they will be
transferred to Ms A H Richards.

4. the First Tranche will be forfeited if
Ms A H Richards leaves employment with the
company (other than by reason of death)
before 31 January 2004. Similarly, the Second
Tranche will be forfeited if she leaves
employment with the company (other than by
reason of death) before 31 January 20035,

5. all of the Restricted Shares awarded to
Ms A H Richards would be transferred to her
as soon as practicable after a takeover {or
similar event) of the company.

6. in the event of a capitalisation issue, rights
issue, open offer, sub-division or consolidation

and division or reduction or any other
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variation of the share capital of the company,
the number of Restricted Shares awarded to
Ms A H Richards may be adjusted in such
manner as the board may determine.

7. no variation to the terms applying to the
Restricted Shares which would be to the
advanrage of Ms A H Richards can be made
without prior shareholder approval (except for
minor amendments to benefir the
administration of the arrangements, to take
account of a change in legislation or to obtain
or maintain favourable tax, exchange control or
regulatory treatment for the company or
Ms A H Richards).

8. Ms A H Richards is liable for any income tax
or employee national insurance contributions
which arise in relation to the awards of the
Restricted Shares.

The awards of Restricted Shares are not

performance related as no performance conditions

were attached to the “lock in” arrangements
which Ms A H Richards had with her previous

employer,

By order of the board
Lynn Mathewson

N ae
Secretary

Edinburgh, 26 March 2003
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Company law requires che directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the revenue of the company
for that period. In preparing those financial

statements, the directors are required to:

D select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

2 make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

© state whether applicable accounting standards
have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the

financial statements; and

independent auditors’ report to the
members of Edinburgh Fund Managers
Group plc

We have audited the financial statements on pages
27 to 48. We have also audited the information in
the directors’ remuneration report that is described
as having been audited.

'This report is made solely to the company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with section 233
of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
taw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this

report, or for the opinions we have formed.

@ prepare che financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in

business.

The directors confirm that they comply with all
the above requirements. The directors are
responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and to
enable them to ensure thar the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 1985, They have
a general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safegnard the assets of
the company and to prevent and to detect fraud

and other irregularities.

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

Respective responsibilities of

directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the directors’ remuneration
report. As described on page 25 above, this
includes responsibility for preparing the financial
statements in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom law and accounting standards. Qur
responsibilities, as independent auditors, are
established in the United Kingdom by statute, the
Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority, and by our
profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether
the financial statements give a true and fair view
and whether the financial statements and the part
of the directors’ remuneration report 1o be audited

have been properly prepared in accordance with
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the Companies Act 1985. We also report 1o you if,
in our opinion, the directors’ report is not
consistent with the financial statements, if the
company has not kept proper accounting records,
if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’
remuneration and transactions with the group is
not disclosed.

We review whether the statement on pages 14
to 16 reflects the company’s compliance with the
seven provisions of the Combined Code specified
for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report
if it does not. We are not required to consider

whether the board’s statements ¢n internal control

cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on -

the effectiveness of the group’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control
procedures.

We read the other information contained in
the Annual Report, including the corporate
governance statement and the unaudited part of
the directors’ remuneration report, and consider
whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements, We consider the implications for our
report it we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the

financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements and the

part of the directors’ remuneration report to be

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003

audited. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies
ate appropriate to the group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to
obtain all the information and explanations which
we considered necessary in ordet to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance thar
the financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial
statements and the part of the directors’

remuneration report to be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

= the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and
the group as at 31 January 2003 and of the
loss of the group for the year then ended; and

S the financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited
have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985.

KNG At Ple

KPMG Audit Pic
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

Saltire Court
Edinburgh, 26 March 2003



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Notes
TURNOVER 2
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
— operating expenses 3
- amortisation of goodwill
—exceptional costs
OPERATING (LOSSYPROFEIT
Gain/(loss) on disposals of investments 5
Exceptional investment write-downs 6
Other income 7
Interest payable 8
(LOSS)/PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION
- before goodwill and exceptionals
— goodwill and exceptionals
- after goodwill and exceptionals
Relief/(taxation) on profit on ordinary activities 9
(LOSSYPROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
AFTER TAXATION
DIVIDENDS 10
Retained loss for the year 22
EARNINGS PER SHARE
{before goodwill and exceptional items) 11
{LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
{afrer goodwill and exceptional items) 11
FULLY DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 11

2003
£000 £000

30,682

(27,551)
(998)

(2,534)

(31,083}

{401)

59
(1,292)
532

{1,102)
(243)

2,779

{4,824)

(2,045)

314
(1,731}
(1,731)

7.0p

{6.1p}

{6.1p)

for the year ended 31 January 2003

2002
£000 £000

34,945

{28,159
(703}

{3,029)

(31,891)

3,054

(180)

718

3,592
{816}

6,508

(3,732}

2,776

(1,167)

1,609
(3,507}

(1,858}

16.2p

5.7p

5.7p
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

at 31 lanuary 2003
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FIXED ASSETS

Intangible assets — goodwill
Tangible assets

Investments

Qwn shares

CURRENT ASSETS

Stock of shares and units
Debtors

Cash and deposics

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Bank overdraft

Taxation and social security
Other creditors

Proposed final dividend

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

Reserves

EQUITY SHAREHCLDERS FUNDS

Notes

12
13
14
15

17

18

19

20

21
22

£000

14
6,281
13,280

19,575

2,699
557
15,550

18,806

Approved by the board on 26 March 2003 and signed on its behalf by:

C K R NUNNELEY, Chairman

=

R M MACRAE, Director /

/
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2003
E00O

18,276
3,120
3,213

199

24,808

769

25,577

14,365

117

11,095

1,426
9,669

11,095

2002

£000 £000

18,449

3,529

4,696

2,015

28,689
307
14,752
9,294
24,353
12,649
1,635
17,542
2,385
34,211

(9,858)

18,831

5,268

103

13,460

1,424

12,036

13,460




Netes

£000

FIXED ASSETS
Investments 14
Subsidiary undertakings 16
Own shares 15
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 17 8,691
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Bank overdraft 2,699
Other creditors 18 17,240
Proposed final dividend _—

19,939

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING

DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR 19
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called up share capirtal 21
Reserves 22

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Approved by the board on 26 March 2003 and signed on its behalf by:

C K R NUNNELEY, Chairman

R M MACRAE, Directo

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

2003

£000 £000
15
62,480
199
62,694

8,477

12,649

14,798

2,385

29,832

(11,248)

51,446
14,365
37,081
1,426
35,655
37,081

at 31 lanuary 2003

2002

£00¢

15
106,982
2,015

109,012

{21,355}

87,657

5,268

82,389

1,424
80,965

82,389
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

for the year ended 31 January 2003

(LoSSHProfit fOr The YEAT ..ot race et e e en et s e e st aen e e e sannsaae

Revaliation OF IMVESIITIEIIES 1.ccivurvverecvesrireersereeesaseissessnssrenssorsorasesssranessssnnansss snsennssstnsnssntos

Total recognised losses and gains relating to the year

NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST PROFITS AND LOSSES

for the year ended 31 January 2003

Reported (loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation ......oceeinvcniecennnecrenneienes

Realisation of investment revaluation losses of prior years

Historical cost (loss)/profit for the vear

Historical cost loss for the year after taxation and dividends .....coocivvvrerininiienicnriscviseenens

DEfOIE TAXATION 1veevirrvrreeeesrsrieetrinsesssioseomemrsssssnenss

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

for the year ended 31 January 2003

{(Loss}/profit for the Year ..covvivininencceeecne e
DiIvIends c..uovveeiecereeirnreercreerncrrsne s inesre e rars s sarssasresans

Retained loss for the year ...

Other recognised (J08$es)/ZAINS oocirerrrriciiiciirire e

155U Of SHATES teureeeiiiireeerieivre e ser et aeeeiab et aeereseras

Net reduction to shareholders’ funds .....

Shareholders’ funds at 31 January 2002 .....ocvivvvnnnccncnnenn,

Shareholders’ funds at 31 January 2003

30 Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003

2003 2002
1000 E£000
(1,731) 1,609
(757} {1,530}
........................................................ (2,488) 79
2003 2002
£00D £000
{2,045} 2,776
................................................ (1,400) (225)
(3,445) 2,551
(3,131) (2,123)
2003 2002
Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
£000 £Q00 £000 £000
(1,731} (45,431} 1,609 1,921
— —_ 3,507 3,507
(1,731} {45,431) {1,898) (1,516)
{757} — {1,530} (18)
123 123 96 96
{2,365) (45,308) (3,332) {1,438}
13,460 82,382 16,792 83,327
11,095 37,081 13,460 82,389




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Notes
Cash inflow {rom OPErating aCHVIHES ...uuvveecrerererererserermarneseerearssssescsensscorssssareracens (a)
Returns on investments and servicing of FINANCE .c.vveeecvivvvereenineemrerssssreransaessees (b}

Taxation......cocveeee-

Capital expenditure and financial INVESEMENT ....vccvuirvveerrrieiererinneecnrcrsve e rnresereans (c)

Acquisitions and disposals .....oceivvciceriin e (d)

Equity dividends paid ..o oo s
Cash inflow/(outflow) before fINANCIAE ..vvvreeriiccirrcreccr e eereee e sresrans
FINANCINE 1ecrinrreirninciiinmsessrines st ess s s s esssasasssessasassssesstssseessissanssssonssessessns (€)
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the YEAL ..vveerciiivininiicrcirsieeeserrrneseecrsanee s essneeseenns (f)

for the year ended 31 January 2003

2003 2002
£000 £000
6,555 4,054
(349) 23
(465) (2,568)
751 1,839
(2,976) (10,003)
(2,385) (5,884)
1,131 (12,469)
12,805 (73)
13,936 {12,542)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

Operating (108S)/Profit vttt e e (401) 3,054
Depreciation CHATEE w.ccc e erirreecsvarsnessiueesrescarssssscssssnaensansassseveesressssaresreessassesns 535 511
Amortisation of Boodwill ...t e 298 703
{Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets .covvivernns (25} 17
Decrease in stock of shares and UDILS ...vcveeieeciniin i cree et e es e s s s raarnee s 293 541
Decrease/(increase) in deBLOS tiorvvieiiiriinrnirirsrisrerscrisetsssresiees s reesnsessrssssssaesssnssrasassacass 8,448 (2,710}
(DecreaselINcrease I CTEITOIS .iuiiiirivcieerrreiiireesssrariesssesssesssssssnneresssasssesessssressassrsrasess vas (3,293) 1,938
6,555 4,054
Net cash inflow from operating activities before exceptional ftems .....cocovcreimecerevernienenns 8,270 6,310
Qutflow related to exceptional items ........ bteeheeeierieeaaseeataeebeba et aassseatttessnbae et tee Rt e s sneen (1,715) (2,256}
Cash inflow from OPerating ACHVITIES cveveeervrseerreeresrveresesieremrsiescrmmresesesimssaessmsecsersesmsmssssenen 6,553 4,054
Operating cash inflow excluding unit trust and QFIC dealing activity ... 4,079 4,988
Cash inflow/(outflow) relating to unit trust and OEIC dealing activity .ooooovvvveveecrvsreneanans 2,476 (934)
......................................................................................................................................... 6,555 4,054
{b} Returns on investments and servicing of finance
TNEEFESE TECEIVEL cerviiviiiiiiieiiirsicitee e ceeas s e ee e s s bbb e s b asaat s srbeneat s beessabeasaearbessnassraassnnsarassnsaser 523 609
DiVIEnds rECEIVE .vvieeeeriieceiciriessiree e rtse et enseesaertessse e sessesesassenssesmastsenssasseneesnsssasnsas 46 90
OTRET IICOIMIE 1ivreertisiernireirstissnsseessrsasesssesiesssosesssessssasessnsesasessasssansesstessasessasessssinsemnasnserss (108) 31
INEETESE PAIA covrevirtieeiiee et e et ree e rseraeres s re e terbe e et s cmns bt saseesbssnmasts shtSana sbsssbannssnss {(810) {637}
Cash (outflow)/inflow from investment and servicing of fiNANCE weeevvcevieeciiiiniinieinns (349) 93

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003

31



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

o 2002 2002
£000 £000
{c) Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase Of tangible ASSEES coviivuirrre e rrsrrrrrceeceeomsorsin s eae e meee e s rsasensarameneeiassresnraneaaacsses {198) {1,201)
Purchase Of INVESIIMENTS .....ociviiiiviniririecrrrrsesssneasessmeerss i seasasssseeeesmsessastsessnsastissssassanssnsness (11) (81)
Purchase Of OWN SHATES coovvvi i ccierrr s s et sra e s s e e e e ss s b s bas s aesababssrnbe e e srnees — (324)
Cost of own shares transferred 10 eMPlOYEES ..ovvvivirirrerceriisissiiins st se s sssss s s 442 400
Sale Of tAnEIblE ASSETS ..vviiiiii it rre e et et s e 97 151
Sale OF INVESEIMENTS ....iiiiiire v aseerveesreereesiesessaerassrarseresessaessasssserssnnsseessssrnessenssnseersnsnaens 421 2,894
Cash inflow from capital expenditure and financial HIVESHNENE ... ..o 751 1,839
{d} Acquisitions and disposals
Cash element on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking .........cccvivivmerresscecnvinnnneeiin, {2,976) (12,376)
Net cash acquired with subsIdIary ... e — 2,373
Cash outflow arising on acquisitions and disposals c........cccicviicriinieniinsneranieseceessreeserens {2,976) {10,003)
{e) Financing
Bank [l 05 1evceeiririirivereee et sirr et s e siae s s e e e et e sbe s be s s ee s s et eerae e bserne s sare e neerre s 13,250 —
ISSUE OF SHATES 11vecetiiriisess e crienseses e e s e e se e s et a st ebese et e et et e s sesme e em s se s e et ene s e e te 123 96
Repayment of J0an NOtES ..ottt st s {568) (169)
Cash inflow/{outflow) from fINANCING ..veeveeeecriirie e 12,805 (73)
(f) Analysis of changes in net debt
31 January 31 January
2002 Cash flow 2003
£000 £006 £000
Cash and depOSItS v vevvriiieeiiiree ety erer e etete s pmne e ebeseesbea g rme e et siren 9,294 3,986 13,280
Bank OVErdraft oooiviicvinreie e ttns s s s i s e ea s s s e (12,649) 9,950 (2,699)
INEE CSH 1 1ereeecitntes e ettt evsstesttn s ae e e ee e et bopa g et bbb e aneenne i (3,355) 13,936 10,581
LLOAN NOLES 111eeeieeetiirarrnaeeceeeesteennssortestestinsrrresinessses s hanersnsssresaanesssrnssessrnsasans (2,592} 568 {2,024)
Bank term IOAm ..vvvviiiiiiiiiie e iiisiienr s et as e s ass e s rreees — (13,250} (13,250)
(5,947) 1,254 (4,693)

Total cevvviviiriiiirinins
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in arriving at the financial information set out in these financial

statements are as follows:

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of

certain hivestments, and in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

Basis of consolidation
The group accounts consolidate the accounts of the company and all its subsidiary undertakings.

As permirtted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, a separate profit and loss account of Edinburgh Fund

Managers Group plc is not presenced.

Turnover
Turnover represents the amount receivable for the year in respect of income from fund management services and the

net profit derived from open-ended fund trading.

Operating lease payments
Operating lease payments are charged in the profit and loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

Pension contributions
The majority of the group’s permanent employees are covered by a funded defined benefit pension scheme.
Contributions are calculated by an external actvary and charged to the profit and loss account over the estimated

service lives of the employees.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation is capitalised and amortised over its estimared useful economic life up to a

maximum of 20 years.

Depreciation
Fixed tangible assets are stated at historical cost less accamulaced depreciation. The tangible assets are written down

to their estimated residual value on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets as follows:

Freehold property 50 years
Office furniture 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Office equipment 3 years
Investments

Listed investments are valued ar market prices. Unlisted investments are included at a valuation determined by the

directors based upon, where appropriate, latest dealing prices, net asset values and other latest known informarion.

Deferred taxation

The charge for ordinary taxation is based on the profits for the year and takes into account full provision for deferred
tax in respect of all timing differences on a non-discounted basis except as otherwise required by FR519. Such timing
differences arise primarily from the differing treatment of certain items for accounting and taxation purposes which

have arisen but not reversed out by the balance sheet date.

Edinburgh Fund Managets Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies—contd

Foreign currencies

Assets and liabtlities in foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange on the last day of the financial year.

Transactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Foreign

subsidiaries are translated using the closing rate method.

Stock of shares and units

These are held by the management companies for the purpose of OEIC and unit trust trading and are valued at net

realisable value.

2003 2002
£000 £000
2 Turnover
Fund management INCOMIE ...umiiiiirinirc it s et ssaseseecstsssmmra sr e es e saba s e essatasamnesbanan 29,577 34,672
Net profit from OEIC and unit trust trading ...oo.veveevereeens e eees e et et ren 1,105 273
TUITLOVET <ooiiitriccitiece et et eecem b bac e b e e b b pes oo breme s b pre s se e b b necenba paecaedbbn rans s b rcecbsdgenn 30,682 34,945
The results for the year are from continuing operations.
3 Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses include:
Remuneration paid to the audirors
and their associates — AUAIE FEES cereeiceiie ittty 61 61
43 32
51 90
Depreciation 535 517
Operating lease payments — land and buildings .....cc..covveciriecccrvnnrreernrnesersrneressesseesesaes 735 633
— office equipiment......... Cresmneeea e e et ae s s et sn st b eas 130 161

Audit fees paid in respect of the parent undertaking amounted to £9,000 (2002 - £8,000).

Exceptional items

Exceptional itemns during the year relate to redundancy payments to staff and associated costs to effect the reduction

of the group’s cost base, additional expenses relating to the integration of Edinburgh Portfolio and the cost of advice

in connection with an offer for the group. In addition to the above, exceptional expenses in 2002 included the

settlement of a legal action.

4 Director and employee information

The average number of employees of the group {excluding non-executive directors} was 2352 (2002 - 266)

SAlAIES AN DOIUSES cevvvviivieeeresieirer i i isie e s s bt s st e ransernttesssesssraresssbreasssssasassnsersessssberessnses
SOCIAL SECUTITY COSES 1verieriaerrenraerirereseareresenrerassrraressreesnesaesrasssssnnsssassnersasnsesssensesssssnstessansarss
Pension scheme costs...

(LNET DENSION COSLS veuetrrrrecstsrencetetunestsrne et sb et et st bbb st satstem s b sem bt st sbe e eb s sE e b b s e st s bt
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12,740 13,302
1,238 1,346
1,402 1,188

191 274

15,571 16,110




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2003 2002
Director and employee information—-contd £000 £000
Directors’ remuneration
B ittt et s e e r e sy et ee e e eeseaseeee s barareetarnrereeve At eeeee e bnreeensrnrane 83 113
OTher EMOIUIMENTS 11veeieiiciiii e creereeerrr i stresais e s s be e e s s e e st e s essatsssabseessnresastas e ssteeeatessasnres 572 494
......................................................................................................................................... 655 607
Compensation for 1085 of 0ffice .ot e 460 259
1,115 866

Detailed information concerning directors’ emoluments and options is shown in the directors’ remuneration report on

pages 17 to 24.

Gain/(loss) on disposal of investments

Realised gain/(10ss) ON INVESTIMENTS «oiiviirrierireerreeseerareerereneetitessressresssessasesssee e cemnnsasenseees 335 (405)
{Gain)/loss brought into account at 31 January 2002 ...ccciiiniiinnenceseneeenrnre e sasnsinenens (276) 225
Gain/(loss) since 31 January 2002 on disposal of investrments ..........ceovvecevversirninsronasnenens 59 (180)

Exceptional investment write-downs

2,041 -—
(1,674) —
367 —
Write-down of own shares held in the employees’ benefir trust 925 —
Exceptional investment write-downs since 31 January 2002 ......vveervrcrenraerrrererscrsieerersncans 1,292 —
Other income
Income from listed INVESIITIENTS ccciviiriinrieeireerieer s e sesassssssess e e s e e b 26 63
Income from unlisted investments 20 27
INTEEESE oovrerrrrerinrereresaccrevnias 524 597
L0 4 T O PO P R STRSP PRSP (38) 31
Interest payable
Interest on bank overdraft ... e 504 503
INtErest On tErM LOAN ittt e e e e s srs ks s 220 —
Interest on unsecured guaranteed loan notes 2000-2005 86 134
Amortisation of discount on contingent deferred consideration .....eececceceniecciiinreseneneea- 133 179
943 816
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2003 2002
£000 £000
9 Taxation
(a} Analysis of charge in the year
Current tax
Corporation tax at the standard rate in the UK of 30% on (loss)/profit for year (284) 1,221
OVerproviSiOn N PrevIOUS YEATS it eiirieiinesiiiessiiissisiesssiaessorasssssansssaassssirassssnas {52) {116}
Current tax (relief)/charge for the Year .o s s sassssesarasenns (336] 1,105
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing diFferences ... ovvveeveivvevreeeseesirse s rrssaesesens 22 62
(314} 1,167
Taxation attributable 10 exceprional Items oot (625} (804)
{h} Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before tax ...oooieeiricncrncccsecseccssreens (2,045) 2,776
{Loss)/profit at the standard corporation tax rate in the UK of 30% ..cooevvivievninerennnne (613} 833
Goodwill amortisation nat tax deductible .....o.coveiiinveiininecciiccnns rerteereesteesraaern s 299 211
Expenses disallowed for corporation 1ax PULPOSES ... e rresaressessrssarsssssminsenes 108 170
Investment write-down not tax deductible ..ocvvvveive v er e e reae e 388 —
Utilisation of tax losses brought forward ..o i (417) —
(Gain)/loss on sale of investments offset by capital losses brought forward ...................... (22) 54
Effect of capital allowances in excess of depreciation ... ivenieccinennsicins (3 {58)
Dividend income not subject t0 COrPOrAtion taX .iivirecrireecnrireereriresraesareseresesseessass (14} (2.5)
QVErprovision INl PIEVIOUS YEALS v.civvcerviervsrsmanisriasi e s sstesssrsessninesasrsssssresirsssssanssessnssssnaes {52) (116}
L8 111 TSSO (8} 36
Current tax (relief)/charge for the year .o, rttertseetreesteabesearnes e e sben e (336) 1,105
10 Dividends
Interim dividend of nil (2002 — 4.0p) per share ... — 1,122
Final dividend of nil (2002 — 8.5p} per share ....ooveviincinicnicnte e — 2,385
.................................................................................................................................. — 3,507
11 £arnings per share
(Loss)/profit after tAXAtION wi.vev e s s rree b san e snase s rsassaass s s st nae e (1,731) 1,609
Adjustments:
GOOAWIIL cevviieirrecrsieeteseereesreae st sre e taeres st e ss e baeasessasstesasestesensatonssetrnsbenrestersarsasnsssen 998 703
Exceptional costs and Write-dOWNS ..coiiieiiireriiee ittt et enae e aen s 3,826 3,029
Taxation attributable to exceptional ITEMS . oo iriirenre e e ree st peeee e ean {695) {804)
TUIHSAION OF TAX [OSSES .iiiveiiieriiiraccseersssisnsssintrsesrussissesssssrsssnsrssssssnsssssmssrasessntessssnsrsiasenns (417) —
3,712 2,928
Profir excluding goodwill and exceptional items and after taxation ....ceoceevviricninaes 1,981 4,537
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2003 2002
11 Earnings per share-contd

Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding «......ccovvvvvcectvmveccisvcniiireneiien. 28,156,363 28,038,915
Number of shares under option that would have been issued ......cviiinnnnencnnenens 197,784 1,046,686
Number of shares that would have been issued at fair value vvevieverccniinreiere e veenene (92,542) (859,874)
Fully diluted weighted average number of SRAres .vveeeccvveveccccnreeereinenrcc e ce e 28,261,605 28,225,727
Basic (lossjfearnings per Share ... aene {6.1p) 5.7p
Adjustment for exceptional costs and write-dOWNS ..o 11.1p 8.0p
Adjustment for S0OAWIIL ..ot e e e en 3.5p 2.5p
Adjustment for utilisation of Tax LOSSES ...civievrrirerriinrinsirirererreeeresseesaserarenssssessseeresrasannss (1.5p) —
Earnings per share (before goodwill and exceptional items) .o.covvvvvicciicenniieisrciiereceniinens 7.0p 16.2p
Fully diluted (loss)/earnings per share .......cccevivinviinnnniinne e (6.1p) 5.7p

In addition to basic earnings per share, earnings per share (before goodwill and exceprional items} is disclosed in the
profit and loss account. In addition to adjustments for goodwill and exceptional items, an adjustment has been made
for the utilisation of tax losses which will not recur. This figure is the headline earnings per share used by stock

market analysts when making comparisons with previous years and other companies.

Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding included an adjustment for the shares held within the employees’
benefit trust which are not beneficially owned by employees as those shares have no dividend entitlement.

Consolidated
{000
12 Intangible assets - goodwill

Cost
At 31 January 2002 ..o i e e n e e n s e e e eas s e e ke s ne e b s ae e st eran 19,398
AUDGITION 111t crereeeeerirerer e ee st aes e re e e ee e rea e boasssceme s essaeen bt srm s e et bt n e S et st 4k S d s e e e RS ran e bbba st s as s e b e ae s R be s 825
AL 31 January 2003 et st st e e b s e e e TR T E e AR b e e et erennn e 20,223
Amortisation
AU 3T January 2002 .ot a s e et et e e e e T RS e ks s R R e b e aeennnere 949
CRATEE FOT YEAT «ectirreemvaiareerarsaereearenseemsearsrrseeassreeaesaressmeamessasaneessasnesantsassemeebnermss bt e g adsstganmontsansmebasstanes 998
At 31 January 2003 ..o s e e s et en e e e st raes 1,947
Net book value

At 3T January 2003 oo ettt s s e e bae AT d e R s e R b nas v r e 18,276
At 31 JAanWAry 2002 .ooeecvieeeeee sttt s s rs s s ek A et s s e b e b e st e b n e n bt e eas 18,449
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Cffice
Freehold furniture and Motor
property equipment vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
13 Tangible assets
Cost
At 31 January 2002 . e e rane e sarares 2,076 3,589 298 5,963
AddIONS oot aree et e s e — 132 66 158
DHSPOSALS .eieierre e ieretrrae e tesinr e e sar e n e s r e s ae e e — {61} (191) (252}
Ar 31 Jannary 2003 .o eeeecente e e rtaaee s 2,076 3,660 173 5,909
Depreciation
AT 31 January 2002 et e eaee 28 2,279 127 2,434
Charge fOr YEAr ..ccoiirivveeceeertrnre e cr e sana e e st es e eem e e san s seeon 45 436 54 535
DiSPOSALS 1eeeeeenreerier i viieiiet e errre s e s s arasssens — (56) (124) (180)
At 31 January 2003 ..ot ees 73 2,659 57 2,789
Net boaok value
At 31 January 2003 ..o sras s e ressrs s 2,003 1,001 116 3,120
At 31 January 2002 .oreerrrcrinasiresssmsssneessesssnnssnsssnsssanssnn 2,048 1,310 171 3,528
The group is committed to the following operating lease payments in the year ending 31 January 2004:
2003 2002
Office Office
Property equipment Property equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating leases which expire:
— Within OIE YEar wuecriiiiiinicivis et ans 23 36 30 —
— 11 ONE 10 FIVE VEATS 1vvuvvrevrrenesssesrarrsssnsssessarsssansssnreressnsesnses 232 94 163 130
— OVET fIVE YEAIS vvvvreevirriirinicsesinnesenens eereeeseruarba e eeabrenr 497 — 428 —
752 130 621 130
Consolidated Company
£000 £000
14 Investments
Market value 31 January 2002 oo eeceeeeineeseiescrrnesbesses s aets s rgennns ke srneeniaees 4,696 15
Adjustinent to cost 31 January 2002 ..o s s 3,042 240
Cost 31 January 2002 ...ceecrireesicrienienscesire s s s e s sssssnassane e ssssar e st anabe s b e s anes satbesasesnnsenas 7,738 255
AQAIIONS T COST tatiriiiiiiiiiieereeeiee it sree e eems e emee e e eststneenea bt s bt e snesasesbasanensasbasssasensnsasbssasnssenn 11 —
DISPOSALS AL COSE reervrrereriserrieiiitesrriereeiteessreeeressbesssereess sesssneetsessssseannesssssssrnsntasssrntannssaes (96) —
AITIOUTIE WITETEI dOWI 1eriiiiiereiiiiiiiisienie s iiiiarere s sissrsrrsssosssssssessssresessnsassssssssarssensssssatensssessnrns {2,041) (208}
Cost 31 January 2003 ... e eccivieeee e ireraseeecsten e stes e rrg st e e erssssesea e prsasa st prg s aabe seeiresanss 5,612 47
Adjustment to market value 31 January 2003 oo et nen (2,399) (32)
Market value 31 January 2003 ..ot irrisninesrneeserssases s orase s e seesrne s ree s sesaenen 3,213 15
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2003 2002

Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
£000 £000 £000 £000

14 Investments—contd
Listed — UK Lot resrse et s e sns e st 3,084 — 4211 —
UNBSTE i ieccecimre ettt ettt es et semes et sy rrmeeenrnns 129 15 485 15
3,213 15 4,696 15
Consolidated Company
£000 £000

15 Own shares

05t 3T JANUALY ZO02 ooreonieceirverererneeaserssnes et rsreesas s te s eneesates s eassasnsasresseasessnsantessseraseass 2,015 2,015
Transferred to beneficial ownership of eMplOvees ..vvevevvverrier e {891) {891)
AIMOUNE WITEEN QOWI 1 rreieirrecivvrecicerrecevsveeeervececessssrevsssesseresersessssrissserasessesssseressssssrasntesrscs {925) (925)
Cost less amounts written down 31 January Z003 .cociinincen e reniese s sessessenssaens 199 199

16

The own shares are held in an employees’ benefit trust. As at 31 January 2002 these were shown in both the
consolidated balance sheet and the company’s balance sheet at cost in accordance with accounting practice. Due to
the fall in the company’s share price, the shares held have been written down to the market value at

31 January 2003.

Company
£000

Subsidiary undertakings
Cost 31 January 2002 (oo ittt sabs e tee sy en s et n s baa e e s baanr b gan b e et b g et bben 106,982
Adjustment 1o cOSt Of ACCUISIIONS .1vrerierireeireesrreererieteeaeserese st st saesasae e scesssanssetsmeenssta st basnsresnasasessaseren 825
AIMOUNE WITEEEI! (OWIL 1ereerrervstreacasrrrnseeessersnnrressornsesanessstansessssassresssnbanssessastnressssrassnrseesssssmnsesssrnrnnessassratss (45,327)
Cost less amounts written down 31 January 2003 .....coiiiiemnirrnneeirsreerns s sess e sars s ase st ernessssanases 62,480

On 12 July 2001 the company acquired the unit trust management company Portfolio Fund Management (now
Edinburgh Portfolio) for an initial cost, including expenses of acquisition, of £12,376,000. In addition, a deferred
consideration of up to £8,000,000 was due to be paid subject to certain growth targets being achieved by

January 2003. At 31 January 2002 the estimated liability of the contingent deferred consideration was £1,500,000 and
this amount was included in the cost of subsidiaties at that date. In January 2003 the calculation of the deferred
consideration was finalised at £2,976,000. This was £1,476,000 higher than estimated at 31 January 2002 because

the growth achieved exceeded the estimated figure.

During the year the estimated liability on rthe deferred consideration due following the acquisition of Northern
Venture Managers has been revised downwards from £3,000,000 to £2,200,000, because current growth projections
are lower than previously estimated. An amount of £651,000, being the discounted value of the reduction of
£800,000, has been deducted from the adjustment to cost of acquisitions during the year.

At 31 January 2003, the carrying value of cost of investments in subsidiaries was assessed against the market value of
the group as a whole, Due to the fall in the company’s share price, the carrying value of subsidiaries has been written
down to £62,480,000 to reflect the markert capitalisation of the group av 31 January 2003.
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16 Subsidiary undertakings-contd

The share capital of the subsidiary undertakings consists solely of equity shares. The following are the principal

subsidiaries of the group:

Registered/

Name incorporated Nature and place of business % owned

Directly held subsidiary undertakings
Edinburgh Fund Managers plc Scotland  Investment management (UK) 100
Edinburgh Unit Trust Managers Limited Scotland  Unit trust and OEIC management (UK} 100
Edinburgh Fund Managers (Private Clients) Limited  Scotland  Investment management (UK) 100
Edinburgh Portfolio Limited England  Unit trust and OEIC management (UK} 100
Northern Venture Managers Limited England  Venture capital fund management {UK) 100
The Edinburgh Securities Company Limited Scotland  Investment company (UK) 100

Indirectly held subsidiary undertakings
Edinburgh Unit Trust Managers {Ireland) Limited Ireland Unit trust management (Ireland) 100
Edinburgh Fund Managers (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda Investment management (Bermuda) 100
2003 2002
Consolidated Company Censolidated Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
17 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiaries ... — — — 372
Management fees receivable 1,767 — 3,908 —
Debtors for shares and units sold or cancelled ..................... 2,597 — 9,594 —
Other debtors ...vvnrrerrermrrimie ettt e 937 — 444 —
Prepayments e ce e aes 885 — 689 —
6,186 — 14,635 372

Amounts falling due outwith one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiaries .....ccccovreevencirininiererniiiniees — 8,691 — 8,105
Deferred taxation:

Accelerated capital allowances 58 — 79 —

Orther timing differences .o e veeeeeceer et vicsceecsscsernenan, 37 — 38 —
............................................................................................ 95 8,691 117 8,105
............................................................................................ 6,281 8,691 14,752 8,477

Deferred taxation:

Movements in deferred taxation balances are as follows:

Ar 31 January 2002 s e 117 — 179 —

Transfer to profit and loss account ,,,........oeevnesrerreecacenns (22) — (62) —

At 31 January 2003 oot sasast s reens 95 — 117 —
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2003 2002
Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
18 Other creditors

Creditors for shares and units
repurchased or created ...ooooieoviioniiene e 3,944 — 8,758 —
Amounts owed 10 SubSIAIITIES vviirieniesienees e — 14,070 — 12,298
ACCTUALS 1etvveeiiieeciinrerrier s ss it ren e aben s ss s rarees s aarsrnansarraness 7,913 117 5.594 944
Trade creditors v ineeriisrar e erre bt s s sstes st resbesvannes 640 — 1,509 —
Bank term loan (see n0te 19) ovovvvviviieniviimniencinncssecnressecsnenes 1,375 1,375 — —
Unsecured guaranteed loan notes 2000-2005 {see note 19} .. 1,678 - 1,678 1,556 1,556
Share sChemes .....ivcciivee s versesrarsserraee s s e s creers — — 125 —
............................................................................................ 15,550 17,240 17,542 14,798

Share schemes represent an estimate of the share enhancement payable in respect of the group’s share incentive scheme,

19 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Bank term IO vvvvvioveereieisei s cenee e s e s e s esas s erana e 11,875 11,875 — —
Unsecured gnaranteed loan notes 2000-2005 .ovceevrvrreeernene. 346 346 1,036 1,036
Contingent deferred consideration ..........cceceverncerieiesinininss 2,144 2,144 4,232 4,232

............................................................................................ 14,365 14,365 5,268 5,268

During the year the company reviewed the banking arrangements which had been put in place in the previous
year to fund the acquisition of Edinburgh Portfolio. A six year term loan of £13,500,000 was taken out and used
to repay the overdraft, This has 2 minimum repayment schedule with the first instalment of £250,000 already
repaid. Of the batance at 31 January 2003 of £13,250,000 the sum of £1,375,000 is due for repayment in the
next 12 months with the balance of £11,875,000 repayable after more than one year. The loan is subject to
covenants which, in accordance with standard practice, are reviewed and discussed with the lender from time to
time. As part of the group’s review of its business strategy, it is actively seeking opportunities to dispose of parts
of the business which do not match that strategy. The board, having regard to its business plans and discussions
with the lender, is confident that the group will continue to comply with covenants for the foreseeable future.

The unsecured guaranteed loan notes were issued as part of the consideration for the acquisition of Northern
Venture Managers. The total value of loan notes outstanding at 31 January 2003 was £2,024,000

(2002 - £2,592,000). The loan notes are redeemable, subject to certain restrictions, during the period

30 june 2003 to 30 June 2003, The maximum amount which may be redeemed during the next year is
£1,678,000 and is included in other credirors falling due within one year,

The contingent deferred consideration represents the discounted value of £2,200,000 which is the estimated
amount payable in June 2003, subject to certain growth targets being achieved by Nerthern Venture Managers.
The consideration may be settled by way of issuing shares or unsecured guaranteed loan notes. It has been
assumed thar the liability will be met by issuing loan notes for the full amount of the deferred consideration. As
no loan notes could be redeemed earlier than June 2004, the contingent deferred consideration falls due after

more than one year.
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20 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Consolidated

NIC on
Provisions: Pensions  share schemes Total
£000 £000 E£000
At 31 January 2002 it 76 27 103
Provided dUuring year .....cceeomenerimneisecsrecrmrr e essesaseeseeeenesnssssaeans 37 4 41
Utilised during year — (27) (27)
Ar 31 January 2003 ..ottt e e e e 113 4 117

The pension provision represents amounts held in respect of unfunded unapproved retirement benefit
arrangements. The provision for national insurance contributions on share schemes represents the amount that
would have been payable on the proportion of restricred shares accrued atr 31 January 2003.

The Financial Services Authority (‘FSA’) and the Financial Ombudsman Service are currently underwaking reviews
in the split capital investment trusts sector. No company within the group has received a request to provide
information to the FSA. There has also been speculation that legal action may be brought against a range of
parties involved in the sector. No legal action has been served against any company in the group and in the event
that the group were to be included in any such proceedings these would be defended robustly. A review of the
group’s exposure to clients deriving from their holdings of split capital investment trusts has been undertaken.
Based on this review and the present progress of the regulatory proceedings the board does not consider that any

provision is required.

Number of shares £000
21 Called up share capital

Authorised
Ordinary shares of 5p each
At 31 January 2003 and 2002 ..veeicierrirevss e teeeceemnresiessss e s s e ceestveransnre s sesssessisssaae 45,000,000 2,250
Allotted, called up and fully paid
AL 31 JANUALY 2002 oottt e s s st e e st e e s baat s res AR R s 28,488,174 1,424
Issued during year on exercise 0f OPUONS oot ss e s 35,745 2
AT31 JANUALY 2003 erroooeoeeeeeeeeeeeeess s eeeeeeeeeeeessee et eeemeeeeseseeseeessssenemressssseeseenserneernes | 285523,919 1,426

During the year a total of 35,000 ordinary shares wete allotted following the exercise of executive share options and
745 ordinary shares were allotted following the exercise of savings-related share options for a total consideration of

£123,000.
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21 Called up share capital-contd

Options relating to share option schemes outstanding at 31 January 2003 to subscribe for new ordinary shares

were as follows:

Subscription Last date when Number of shares
price options exercisable 003 2002
Executive share option schemes

308p o June 2002 .ot — 30,000
366D e, JUNE 2003 L e 20,000 35,000

GOAD v, May 2004 oot st a e ssens s 145,000 170,000
532.5P ciiieveieentnre et March 2005 oot eres s rnesesassrsessesranaess 170,500 344,500
582.5D e May 2005 oottt tetieese e eeseraessterestsseressareseasnsean 30,000 30,000
317.5D cocvreeievreet e s s September 2005 .vecovveeiirer e e 10,000 20,000
726D ccerenrearnenasnens cevrreeiaennean October 20035 oot raecsta e easr s 115,000 175,000

6IIP cevveemserrercsonressresssorensonse MATCN 2006 covvemrereerieeereeesessrecsessseeseesesireesssenesesneeeee 110,000 170,000
407.5D covoveecrreernrereesmseeeennerres MAY 2006 coveessoeeeereeesressssseeosseseesesemssersemssersessmeeene 210,000 420,000

430D it Septermnber 2008 ...cooeeiceieeiieemenceeecer e e 24,000 34,000
S92.5D cevervcerniirniensninnescreresens September 2006 oo arasae e 376,000 569,000
S47.5D coirerieeeee e, March 2007 vttt et sttt cene 3,000 53,000
BEIP iivieeeevceininiisssreeneeee. March 2007 oo SOV 240,000 330,000
B32.5D it ennae e September 2007 c..ooviiiiiirieeiriene e ssa s 20,000 30,000
410D cevereeirie e September 2008 oot iresree et esaee e raentens 125,000 125,000
L T 3 USSR November 2008 ...ooooiiiiiiieriseeeniiese st eestesessssresies 25,000 25,000
396D v May 2009 ..ottt s 40,000 —
123.5D v October 2009 .ottt et rae s raaenans 197,784 —

1,861,284 2,560,500

.........................................................................................................................................

463D eorereeeeeeiereeeeomemmsere e JURE 2002 oo vvemeeeeessveesessimssseeesemeeessseensonresssseeenes — 11,398
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Capital Share Special Profit
redemption premium capital Revaluation and loss
reserve account reserve reserve account Total
£000 £000 £000 £0CO £000 £000
22 Reserves
Consolidated
At 31 January 2002 ..o 183 3,915 — (3,042) 10,980 12,036
Retained loss for the year ....cccocvvvveecinvvenvcninienas — — — — (1,731} (1,731}
TIssu€ Of ShAres .oecvevcvvervivernreessirsrrr s sraesesans e 121 — e — 121
Revaluation of investments .......uocvcecererreeeennenne.. — — — 643 {1,400) (757)
At 31 January 2003 .o e 183 4,036 —_ (2,399) 7,849 9,669
Company
At 31 January 2002 .o, 183 3,915 75,177 (240) 1,930 80,965
Retained loss for the year .....ccoocciiivivivrereernennes — — —_ —  (45,431) (45,431)
Transfer from special capital reserve ....oovuiivmnene, — —  (45,326) — 45,326 —
Issue of Shares ..coiveicieniiiiiiiiii it — 121 — — — 121
Revaluation of iInVesSIMENts .vvnemirissesniviiisins — — — 208 {208) —
At 31 January 2003 .. 183 4,036 29,851 (32) 1,617 35,655

Cumulative goodwill written off to reserves to 31 January 2003 amounted o £86,231,000 (2002 - £85,233,000),

There are no non-equity interests in the reserves.

23 Related party transactions

During the year Noble Grossart Lid, of which Sir Angus Grossart is chairman, provided services to the group in
connection with potential acquisitions and for advice in connection with an offer for the group. The costs charged to the
profit and loss account during the year amounted to £2292,300 (2002 — £237,000). In addition Sir Angus Grossart’s fees

as a director were paid to Noble Grossart Ltd.

24 Employees’ share schemes

The company has an employees’ benefit trust and an approved profit sharing scheme to increase share ownership
amongst the staff in order to align the interests of the staff with other shareholders. A subsidiary company, Edinburgh
Fund Managers {Trustees) Limited, acts as the corporate trustee of The Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Employees’
Benefit Trust and The Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Profit Sharing Scheme.

The employees’ benefit trust is used to hold shares for the benefit of employees wheo elect to use all or part of their
bottus payable under one of the three cash bonus schemes to acquire shares. Employees electing to receive shares
(Deferred Bonus Shares) in lieu of cash will receive an enhancement (Matching Shates) of up to 60% of the number of
Deferred Bonus Shares purchased with their after tax bonus. The Deferred Bonus Shares are held within the
employees” benefit trust for the beneficial ownership of the employee and, subject to the employee continuing to be
employed after three years, the Deferred Bonus Shares and Matching Shares will be transferred to the employee.

The company has an Inland Revenue approved Share Incentive Plan to encourage staff to participate in ownership of
the company. For each share purchased by employees the company awards a matching share. In addition, employees
are offered free shares if performance targets set by the company are achieved. No free shares will be offered in respect
of the year ended 31 January 2003.
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Employees’ share schemes-contd

A summary of the number of shares held within the various employees’ share schemes is as follows:
¥ ploy

31 January 31 Jahuary
2003 2002
00¢ 000
Employees’ Benefit Trust
Non-beneficially held
Unallocared SHares ... o ovovicoriirreesiireoecricrsisraecsiseaetssteacsssieemssssicacsscssmssssssrarscesnressssssneen 153 348
Matching Shares .ottt bt s sae s RN 77 81
......................................................................................................................................... 230 429
Beneficially held
Deferred bonus shares ........... drrneeentarneas S e d oo bt ee e SR b A bbb s ra b b et s bane 128 136
ReESETICIEA SHATES -vvivrvciiiiicmviesrersasise e aarerace saeeseeraereeesearresaesareaseesaasceesaeremae g o sssampensessseen 130 —
Profit sharing sCHEmME ..coirveiivree et s s s sa e ne b s 86 88
Share incentive plan (including matching shares) .....cccovvevcvecncesrniiciccceninscrieccrcenacs 223 62
797 715
Percentage of share Capital ..oiiiveiiiiniiii i s e sesee st s ssesa e s saners e e onnas 2.8% 2.5%

The 153,000 shares which are not allocated to employees are included in the balance sheet at a market value of
£199,000. These unaliocated shares will be used principally to satisfy shares under the bonus scheme or to satisfy the
share options outstanding under the savings-related share options scheme. The 230,000 shares not beneficially held for

employees have no dividend entitlement,

25

Pensions

The principal pension scheme, Edinburgh Fund Managers Group ple Retirement and Death Benefits Plan, provides
retirement benefits based on salary close to retirement for eligible group employees. Employees who are not eligible for
this scheme are members of defined contribution schemes. Employers® contributions are charged to the profit and loss

account. The assets of the schemes are held separately under trust from those of the group.

SSAP 24 disclosure

Contributions to the scheme are charged to the profit and loss account to spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working lives with the group. The contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial
valuations using the projected unit credit method. The most recent funding update was at july 2002. The assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the resulis of the valuation are those relating to the rate of return on
investments and the rates of increase in salaries and pensions. For the purposes of this disclosure, it was assumed that
the investment returns would be 6.75% per annum, that salary increases would average 4.5% per annum and that
present and future pensions would increase by an average 2.5% per anpum, Certain members have a minimum

guaranteed increase on pensions of 3.0% per annum.

The most recent funding update as at 31 July 2002 showed that the matket value of the scheme’s assets was £24.1 million.
The assessed value of those assets represented 81% of the value of benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for

expected salary increases. The next formal actuarial valuacion will be as at 31 January 2003,

The defined benefit pension scheme cost for the year was £1,347,000 (2002 ~ £1,211,000), which was after a deduction of
£202,000 (2002 - £431,000) in respect of the amortisation of the previous surplus to 1 November 2002 and the
amortisation of the deficit from then onwards. The amortisation is over 14 years, the assumed average remaining service
lives of the pensionable employees. The contributions may increase following the actuarial valuation at 31 January 2003,
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25 Pensions-contd

Due to the impact of Inland Revenue restrictions, part of the normal benefit for two members is provided through an
unfunded unapproved arrangement, The cost of unapproved benefits has been determined by an actuary using financial
assumptions which are consistent with those used to value benefits in the Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc Retirement
and Death Benefits Plan. A provision of £113,000 {2002 — £76,000) is included in respect of the cost of providing the

unapproved benefits accrued to 31 January 2003 (see note 20).

FRS 17 disclosure
The following information is provided in addition to the SSAP 24 disclosures to meet the transitional provisions of FRS 17. The

notes of the analysis of the amounts charged to operating profit and the analysis of amount recognised in the statement of
total recognised gains and losses are disclosure requirements of FRS 17. Under the transitional provisions these amounts are

not reflected in the operating profit or statement of recognised gains and losses.

A full actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 January 2001 using the projected unit method and updated to 31 January
2003 by a qualified independent actuary. The major financial assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the scheme
liabilities under FRS 17 that are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to the

timescale covered, may not be borne out in practice, were (in nominal terms):

2003 2002

Discount rate 5.30% 5.60%
Salary increases 4.30% 4.25%
Increases in pensions in payment* 2.30% 2.25%
Inflation 2.30% 2.25%
2.30% 2.25%

Increases in deferred pensions

* some pensioners receive 4 minimum increase of 3.0% pa.

The fair value of the scheme’s assets, which are not expected to be realised in the short term and may be subject to significant

change before they are realised, and their expected gross rates of return, together with the present value of the scheme’s

liabilities, which are derived from cash flow projections over long periods and thus inherently uncertain, were:

Expected rate 2003 Expected rate 2002

of return £000 of return £000

EQUILIES 1vvvivissecceerrrnsenssssessresrenresaseesressssssnsssasssssrssnnsnsnesnssanenss 700 17,160 7.0% 24,718
BONAS corereerrcraecineesrecreesrecrnes s ersserersressasssosseosrnessonesnnessesreerses | 403 40 3,171 4.5% 2,001
Cash e e 4.0% 1,498 4.0% 2,232
Total market value of ASSELS .ovovvirvecinin i e vaene 21,829 28,951
Present value of scheme liabilities ......vvvverveveeeeececcccinrisiners e e {40,200) (35,800}
Deficit in the SChEMe vveicieeceeir s eceee e e s e ab e ebaae e (18,371) (6,849)
Related deferred tax asset covvvvrivveircesseesiesinnrevesrevreesessessusnes 5,511 2,055
Net pension defiCit ..ovririnerrerrrnrrssscersimrssersmeesersseesrssssaseses (12,860} {4,794}
Net assets of the group excluding pension deficit ...coeoeiciiiivienns 11,095 13,460
INEet Pension defICit i e mrreeri ittt sre st s st s seaseees (12,860} (4,794}
Net (liabilities)/assets of the group including pension deficit ........ (1,765) 8,666
Profit and loss reserve of the group excluding pension deficir ...... 7,849 10,980
Net pension defiCit vovverervierereriinieiieereererees e s e srseeressaenses {12,860} (4,794)
Profit and loss reserve of the group including pension deficit ....... (5,011} 6,186
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2003
£000

25 Pensions-contd

Movement in deficit during the year

Deficit in scheme at begINNINE 0f YEAT .ovvccerinieicti ettt s e s e eas s e b s sr s s e e emnabeas (6,849)
Movement in year:

CUTTENE SEEVICE COSTarururnrrrrrrnsusssrrsressereisismmmismmiosisssssssasmssesrsrsrmmaesisratastststntessesssssesssssassssssineressbsssssnsenssserss (1,890)
CONETIBUEIONS 111 1e1receecerirres et etetesae e ce s reserreseststscess st e saeassssaesesass s esereemsatesnressnsntarsese s baesssorsssabasansesesaternasen 1,460
PASE SEEVICE COST viavirverarieisirirrtnresesissssmsiesriestnriearsesssararassrsasesssonsasassrarsassasssssstrssessssransnssrsrssresscasrsrararresasnstes (121)

Net interest COSt ...
ACTUAIIAL LOSS cueirivevecaieereraesrtisiirrsseesessssasisnsssreaastassntesasrssnesssassssesbesarnrsnsesassssnsessntssssensasessssesntensasessnensnssn {10,861)

Deficit in scheme at d OF VEAT ..ottt sraa s e etsseanre e se st rree s st s gnem s sessean e bt sasssansassn (18,371)

£000
Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit

CUITEILE SEIVICE COST 1ivyeianiivitaernreaansetessrasansessssrsaseesressstnsmerasasssansesanssessonnsesssssessnsnseesess srmrssnssssssomrsnsstsessnsnntes 1,890
121

Past SEEVICE COSE vvrrmmvrarirrerrens

Total amount charged t0 OPETAtING PLOFIL -rectvrrireierirsirrseeeccrrrrsre e e mstasrrvreeeessraesseeatssrass e eeesbrare v e ebterresaee 2,011

Analysis of net return on pension scheme
Expected return On Pension SCHEIME ASSES v-ocwvuiiirreeasvriesraecererrstarseaasassesrsessesnssnssassessarssersesstessessesacssssssen 1,915
Interest on Pension HaBIEIES .. . i erciieeeiee et eccr it vrre e e e secesaare e s s s ran e e e daan v nen st e rne e e e s v anneaan (2,025)

INEE TEEUITTIL t1evveeeeieusssssnrnssetessstemnnnntstassssnaaeessssasnsensntsssssommeeanssstnnesnsnttssssnsonessssssensnnsntbnsnensensssssssnnsnssesessneesssrs {(110)
2003 % of assets/
£000 liabilities

Analysis of amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses

Actual return less expected TETUITL ON ASSETS .vvvvrvriireerseirssscesssnininessrescsnnsssrorassasacsnnassenss (@) (9,196) (42)

Experience gains and losses on [abilities ..o iieeiciniiieriesneeieece e eseseesseesneens (D) 935 2

Changes in ASSUMPEOIS 1vvvvieiieieiiriireerirresseescrrirasssassesrssssstessrassrressasesranssnseest sestassnmssrsarnsees {2,600)

INEE 1058 PECOGIISEA cuvrnneitteie ettt et e et e e bes s s mnne s e r e e e eesse s asae s sbasasananns (b} (10,861) {27}

The percentages shown are calculated as follows:
{a) Percentage of the scheme assets ar the balance sheet date

(b} Percentage of the scheme liabilities at the balance sheet date
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26 Financial instruments

The group’s financial instruments comprise equity shares, cash balances, a bank overdrafr and debtors and creditors
that arise directly from its operations. As permitted under FRS 13, Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments, short

term debtors and creditors have been excluded from these disclosures.

The interest rate and currency profiles of the group’s financial assets at 31 January 2003 were as follows:

Total No interest Floating rate

£000 £000 £000

SEEIHIE 1o teerercrcimrisrrerrrsr e rer s s e a e e e re st ks as e reas 15,640 3,131 12,509
LS DI0lIAL 1o s cececcs e s bbb smr e e ee e s da b 735 — 735
Other currencies 118 82 36
16,493 3,213 13,280

The financial assets with no interest do not have a maturity date and principally comprise fixed asset investments, These
are subject to stock marker movements. The floating rate financial assets principally comprise cash and deposit balances
which earn interest at rates which fluctuate according to money market rates. Non-sterling cash balances are subject to

exchange rate movements.

The group’s financial liabilities at 31 January 2003 were the bank loan of £13,250,000 which is in sterling, has a
floating interest rate and a repayment schedule until Seprtember 2008, the bank overdraft of £2,699,000 which is in
sterling, has a floating interest rate and no fixed repayment date, the unsecured guaranteed loan notes of £2,024,000
which have a floating interest rate and are repayable between 30 June 2003 and 30 June 20085, and £2,144,000 of
contingent deferred consideration that may be settled by way of issuing shares or unsecured guaranteed loan notes,

repayable berween 30 June 2004 and 30 June 2007. The maturity profile was as follows:

£000

OMNE YEAT OF LE55 cereeeeeceeereiriiieniresireseresssaassnaresmeeenessss Cvesrerenteisr ey it eaaaeeaaereeueeesae et areranaesan s st eanseenaeesesasstaans 5,752
More than one year but not more than two years 3,650
More than two years but not more than five years 8,840
MOTre than fiVe FEAIS .oveeecirrieririiieieiieeistrisesebesssessere e e bcetbasasssrs srasaasassn s smseas it seataasasssanrsnnsennsensessiostiores 1,875
.................................................................................. 20,117
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FIVE YEAR RECORD

Year ended 31 January 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
fm fm fm £m fm
Funds under management 6,622 8,035 8,566 7,050 4,063
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Shareholders’ funds 7,615 12,422 16,792 13,460 11,095
Fund management income 26,693 29,513 36,130 34,672 29,577
Net profit from OFIC and unit trust trading 308 422 210 273 1,105
Turnover 27,001 29,935 36,340 34,945 30,682
Administrative expenses {excluding
goodwill and exceptional items} 17,962 19,907 24,741 28,159 27,551
Operating profit (before
goodwill and exceptional items) 9,039 10,028 11,599 6,786 3,131
Profit/{loss) on disposal of investments 45 528 498 {180} 59
Other income less interest payable 604 267 359 {98) (411)
Profit on ordinary activities before
taxation, goodwill and exceptional items 9,688 10,823 12,456 6,508 2,779
Exceptional items 2,002 1,281 — (3,029) (3,826)
Amortisation of goodwill — — (246) (703) (998)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation 11,690 12,104 12,210 2,776 (2,045)
Relief/(taxation) (3,770) (3,616) (3,634) {1,167) 314
Profic/{loss) on ordinary
activities after taxation 7,920 8,488 8,576 1,609 (1,731)
Minority interest (1) — — — —
Profit/{loss) for the financial year 7,921 8,488 8,573 1,609 {1,731}
Earnings per share excluding
goodwill and exceptional items 23.6p 27.5p 31.4p 16.2p 7.0p
Dividends per share 25.0p 25.0p 25.0p 12.5p —

Notes:

FRS 19 was implemented during the year ended 31 January 2002, The figures for the year ended 31 January 2001 have

been restated but no adjustment has been made to previous years as these would not be material.
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Registered office

Donaldson House

97 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh EH1Z 5HD
Telephone: 0131-313 1000
Facsimile: 0131-313 6300
Registered no: SC 157875
Website: www.edfd.com

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services plc
Owen House

8 Bankhead Crossway North
Edinburgh EH11 4BR

Telephone: 0870 702 0010

Website: www.computershare.co.uk

Bankers
Bank of Scotland

The Mound
Edinburgh EH1 1YZ

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc
Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh EH1 2EG

Stockbroker

Investec Securities
2 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QN
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Financial calendar

Announcements, ordinary share dividend
payments and the issue of the annual and
interim reports may normally be expected in

the following months:

March — Preliminary figures and
recommended final dividend

for year to 31 January

announced

April - Annual report and accounts
published

June - Annual general meeting

September - Interim figures to 31 July

October - Interim report for half year to
31 July published

Annual general meeting

This year’s annual general meeting will be
held at Donaldson House on

Wednesday 4 June 2003 at 10.30 am.
Shareholders are asked to reply on the
enclosed card if they will be attending the

meeting.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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CORPORATE LEGAL STRUCTURE

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc¢

Chairman:
Charles Nunneley

Directors:
Rod MacRae
Anne Richards
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Edinburgh Fund Managers plc

Directors:
Graham Brock
Alastair Conn
Rod MacRae
Ken McKenna
Anne Richards



Edinburgh Unit Trust
Managers Limited

Directors:

Rod MacRae
(Chairman)

Alan Bathgate
Lesley Drummond
Jon Hodesdon
Brian Nicholson
Anne Richards

Edinburgh
Portfolio Limited

Directors:

Rod MacRae
(Chairman)
Graham Brock
Mark Harris
Jon Hodesdon
Brian Nicholson

Northern Venture
Managers Limited

Directors:

Michael Denny
(Chairman)

Alastair Conn
(Managing Director)
Nat Hone

Colin Kidd

Tim Levett
Christopher Mellor
Norman Yarrow

Group Subsidiaries
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Edinburgh Fund
Managers (Private
Clients) Limited

Directors:

Alan Aitchison
(Managing Director)
Graham Brock

Mark Hallam
Andrew Hartley
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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the eighth annual
general meeting of Edinburgh Fund Managers
Group ple will be held ar the registered office of
the company, Donaldson House, 97 Haymarket
Terrace, Edinburgh, on 4 June 2003 ar 10.30 am
for the following purposes:

Ordinary business

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1. to adopt the reports of the directors and
audirors and the financial statements for the
year ended 31 January 2003;

2, to appoint Mr C K R Nunneley as a director;
3. to appoint Mr R M MacRae as a director;
4. to appoint Ms A H Richards as a director;

5. to approve the directors’ report on remuneration
for the year ended 31 January 2003;

6. to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors;

7. to authorise the directors to fix the auditors’

remuneration;

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

8. that, in substitution for any existing authority,
the company be and it is hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised, in accordance with
section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 (the
*Act’}, to make market purchases (within the
meaning of section 163(3) of the Act) of fully
paid ordinary shares of Sp cach in the capital of
the company {‘shares’), provided that:

{1} the maximum aggregate number of shares
hereby authorised to be purchased shall be
10% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of the passing of

Notes
Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting.

Any such holder may appoin: ancther person {or persons)
(whether a member of the company or not) as his proxy (or
proxies) to attend and vote on a poll in his stead. A form of
proxy for use by holders of ordinary shares is enclosed with these
accounts. Proxies must be lodged with the company’s registrars,
Computershare Investor Services PLC, PO Box 1075, Bristol
BS29 3ZZ not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
the meeting, Completion and return of a form of proxy will not
prevent a holder of ordinary shares from attending or voting in
person should he so wish.

Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2003

o e,

this resolution,;

(ii) the minimum price which may be paid for a
share shall be 5p (exclusive of expenses); and

(iii) the maximum price {exclusive of expenses)
which may be paid for a share shall be an
amount equal to 105% of the average of
the middle market quotations (as derived
from the Daily Official List of the London
Stock Exchange) for the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the
date of purchase;

such authority to expire on the earlier of

3 December 2004 or at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the company to be
held in 2004, unless previously revoked, varied
or renewed by the company in general meeting,
save that the company may at any time prior to
the expiry of such authority enter into a
contract to purchase shares under such
authority which will or might be completed or
executed wholly or partly after the expiration
of such authority and may make a purchase of

shares in pursuance of any such contract.

Special business

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the

following ordinary resolution:

9. that the maximum aggregate fees paid to and
benefits in kind received by the directors be
increased to £175,000 per annum and that
Article 94 of the Articles of Association of the
Company be read and construed accordingly.

By order of the board
Lynn Mathewson
Secretary

Edinburgh, 10 April 2003

Registered office: Donaldson House,
97 Haymarket Terrace, Edinburgh EH12 SHD

Regulations 2001, the company specifies that only those holders
of ordinary shares entered on the register of members of the
company as at 6.00pm on 2 June 2003 or, in the event that the
meeting is adjourned, on the register of members 48 hours before
the time of the adjourned meeting, shall be entitled to attend or
vote at the meeting in respect of the number of ordinary shares
registered in their name at that time. Changes to the entries on
the register of members after §.00pm on 2 June 2003 or, in the
event thar the meeting is adjourned, in the register of members
48 hours before the time of any adjourned meeting, shall be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or
vote at the meeting, notwithstanding any provisions in any
enactment, the articles of association of the company or other
nstrument e the contrary.
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FORM OF PROXY

I/We
; BLOCK
o CAPITALS
PLEASE

being (a) member(s) of Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc hereby appoint

o, failing him, the chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for mefus and on my/our behalf at

the annual general meeting of the company to be held on Wednesday 4 June 2003 ar 10.30 am and at

any adjournment thereof,

For Against
1. Adoption of directors’ and auditors’ reports and financial statements
2. Appointment of Mr CK R Nunneley as a director
3. Appointment of Mr R M MacRae as a director
4. Appointment of Ms A H Richards as a director
5. Approve directors’ remuneration report
6. Re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditors
7. Authorisation of directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors
8. Authorisation to purchase own shares
9. Increase maximum aggregate of directors’ fees
Signed Date
Notes:
1. Proxies must be lodged at the address overleaf not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the

meeting, together with the power of attorney or other authority {if any) under which it is signed or an extract from

the Boaks of Council and Session or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney.

. A corporation should execute under its common seal or the hand of a duly autherised officer.

3. Members are entitled to appoint a proxy of their own choice. If desired the name of such proxy can be inserted in the

space provided. If no name is inserted in such space, the chairman of the meeting will act as proxy.

. Please indicate how you wish your votes to be cast by placing a cross in the appropriate spaces. Unless otherwise

indicated the proxy will vote as he thinks fit or will abstain.

. In the case of joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted

to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders; and for this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order

in which the names stand in the register of members,

. Completion of this form of proxy will not prevent members from attending the meeting and voting in person should

they so wish.

. A proxy need not be a member of the company.
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Head Office

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc
Donaldson House

97 Haymarket Terrace

Edinburgh EA12 5HD

Telephone: 0131-313 1000

www.edfd.com
0800 028 6739
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Edinburgh
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